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BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Members
IRM ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited)

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting their Eighth Annual Report together with
the Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended
on March 31, 2023 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

FINANCIAL & OPERATING RESULTS

(a) FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended on March 31, 2023, is

summarized below:

(Amount in Rs. million)

2 Financial Year Financial Year

Bortianians 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 10,391.35 5,461.43
Other Income 59.64 30.5
Total Income 10,450.99 5,491.93
Total Expenditure other than Finance Cost,
Depreciation and Tax 2,208.59 3,997.14
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Finance
Cost, Depreciation and Tax 1,182.40 i
Less: Interest and Finance Charges 229.03 220.75
Less: Depreciation and amortization
o 208.98 150.41
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 744.41 1,523.63
Less: Provision for Taxation 179.61 388.04
Profit for the period 564.80 1,135.59
Other comprehensive
income/(Expenses) [net of tax] a3 Wile
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit
or (Loss), net of tax o vls
Total comprehensive income/(Expenses)
for thie period 564.17 1,135.74
Earning per equity share (Rs. Per share) 18.72 38.92

(b) OPERATING RESULTS

During the year, the Company has continued to create CGD infrastructure in the
Geographical Areas (GAs) of Banaskantha District in the state of Gujarat, Fatehgarh
Sahib District in the state of Punjab and Diu & Gir Somnath in the UT/state of Daman

& Diu and Gujarat respectively.
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(c)

(d)

(e)
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Backed by the robust infrastructure and increased CNG Stations rollout during the
year under review, the Company generated a Profit after Tax of Rs. 564.80 million
(PY: Rs. 1,135.59 million) with a gross turnover of Rs. 10,391.35 million (PY: Rs.
5,461.43 million).

The operating result for the year ending March 31, 2023 was largely impacted due
to higher input gas costs resulting on account of the prevailing geo-political scenario
of the Ukraine-Russia war.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-
23 are prepared in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Rules made thereunder. The Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared on the basis of audited financial statements of the Company,
subsidiary and joint control entities, as approved by their respective Board of
Directors. The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Auditors' Report
form part of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors are pleased to recommend the final dividend of Rs. 1/- per
share (10% on the face value of Rs. 10 each) on 3,49,99,432 10% Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ended on March
31, 2023. The dividend is subject to the approval of members at the ensuing 8th
Annual General Meeting.

Further, the Board of Directors are pleased to recommend the final dividend of Rs.
0.50/- per share (5% on face value of Rs. 10 per share) on 3,02,59,677 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. The dividend is
subject to the approval of members at the ensuing 8th Annual General Meeting.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year
under review.

CGD PROJECTS OVERVIEW

The Company is a city gas distribution ("CGD") company in India, with operations at
Banaskantha (Gujarat), Fatehgarh Sahib (Punjab), Diu & Gir Somnath (Union Territory
of Daman and Diu/Gujarat), and Namakkal & Tiruchirappalli (Tamil Nadu), engaged in

the

business of laying, building, operating and expanding the city or local natural gas

distribution network. The Company develop natural gas distribution projects in the
geographical areas (“GAs") allotted for industrial, commercial, domestic and automobile
customers. We supply natural gas to two primary set of customer segments -
Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) and Piped Natural Gas (PNG).
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The Company has created an infrastructure of 3665.13 inch kms including 3000.35 inch
kms of MDPE Pipelines and 664.78 inch kms of steel pipelines for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2023. As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 179 PNG industrial
customers, 248 PNG commercial customers and 48,172 PNG domestic customers. The
Company established 62 CNG Stations comprising 3 stations owned and operated by the
Company [“COCO Stations”), 34 CNG stations owned and operated by dealers ("DODO
Stations”) and 25 CNG stations owned and operated by oil marketing companies (“OMC
Stations") as at March 31, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 65,25,91,090/-
comprising of 3,02,59,677 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 3,49,99,432 10% Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 /- each.

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted equity shares in the
following manner:

(i) On September 02, 2022, 6,15,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on the Private
Placement basis at a premium of Rs. 415/- per share.

(ii) On December 02, 2022, 2,75,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on the Private
Placement basis at a premium of Rs. 540/- per share.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value to Rs. 10/- each.
During the year under review, the Company has neither issued equity shares with
differential voting rights nor granted stock options or sweat equity.

ROPOSED INITIAL P HE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meetings held on July 22, 2022, November
07, 2022 and December 08, 2022 has considered the proposed Initial Public Offering
(IPO) of equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each ("Equity Shares") of the Company
comprising a fresh issue up to 1,01,00,000 Equity Shares (the “Issue”). Further, the
members of the company have approved the Issue pursuant to a special resolution
passed on November 16, 2022.

The Board of Directors and IPO Committee at their respective meetings held on
December 08, 2022 and December 14, 2022, have approved the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus ("DRHP") of the Company dated December 14, 2022 and filed with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI"), BSE Limited ("BSE") and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") on December 15, 2022.

The Company has obtained in-principle approval from BSE on January 27,2023 and from
NSE on January 30, 2023. Further, the Company received the final observation letter
from SEBI on February 21, 2023 having validity of 12 months from the date of issuance
of the observation letter.
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HOLDING COMPANY

Cadila Pharmaceuticals Limited has ceased to be holding Company w.e.f. September 02,
2022, on account of dilution of its shareholding.

IDIARY AN A P

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has incorporated a subsidiary company
- SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited, with 70% subscribed share capital in the said
Company.

Further, the Company has three Joint Control Entities as on March 31, 2023. There has
been no material change in the nature of the business of these entities.

The following are the details of the subsidiary company:

(a) SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited:

Corporate Information:

SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited was incorporated as a private limited company
under the Companies Act, 2013, pursuant to the certificate of incorporation dated
September 21, 2022, issued by the RoC, Central Registration Centre. Its corporate
identification number is U40200G]2022PTC135623. Its registered office is situated
at 3rd Floor, Block- 8, Magnet Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, S.G. Highway,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380 054,

Nature of Business:

SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited is engaged inter alia in the business of generating,
developing, and trading renewable energy including but not limited to set-up
renewable energy systems like solar energy systems, wind energy system, and
power plants in or outside India as authorized under the objects clause of its
memorandum of association.

The following are the Associate Companies as Joint Venture entities:

(a) Farm Gas Private Limited (FGPL)

Corporate Information:

Farm Gas Private Limited was incorporated as a private limited company under the
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated December 9,
2019, issued by the RoC, Central Registration Centre. Its corporate identification
number is U40108GJ2019PTC111286. Its registered office is situated at 3rd Floor,
Kailash-A, 647, Sumangalam C.H.S.L,, Drive-In Road, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad, Gujarat
- 380 054.
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(b)

(c)

The Company holds 50% of the equity share capital of FGPL and 100% of 10.5%
non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares of FGPL.

Nature of Business:

Farm Gas Private Limited is engaged inter alia in the business of manufacture,
distribute, storage, supply of compressed biogas (CBG) and bio manure/bio-
fertilizer through processing of agri residue/biomass and municipal solid waste and
generate renewable and alternate energy like LPG, CNG, LNG, Bio CNG, alternate
fuels, bio fuels, solar, bio manure, bio fertilizer, industry grade Carbon dioxide
(COZ), wind, new and renewable energies from municipal solid waste, pressmud,
farm produce, agri processing waste and/or any other means, as authorized under
the objects clause of its memorandum of association.

Venuka Polymers Private Limited (VPPL)

Corporate Information:

Venuka Polymers Private Limited was incorporated as a private limited company
under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated
December 19, 2019, issued by the RoC, Central Registration Centre. Its corporate
identification number is U25209G)2019PTC111511. Its registered office is situated
at 4th Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park, Near Zydus Hospital, S.G. Highway,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380 054.

The Company holds 50% of the equity share capital of VPPL and 100% of 10.5%
non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares of VPPL.

iness:
Venuka Polymers Private Limited is engaged inter alia in the business of
manufacturing, distributing, supplying, micro-Irrigation systems,
PVC/MDPE/HDPE/LDPE/LLDPE/PP pipes, tubes, hoses, fittings, etc. and to do all

such incidental acts and things as authorized by the object clause of its
memorandum of association.

Ni Hon Cylinders Private Limited (NHCPL)

Corporate Information:

Ni Hon Cylinders Private Limited was incorporated as a private limited company
under the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated
November 26, 2018, issued by the RoC, Central Registration Centre. Its corporate
identification numberis U28100DL2018PTC342172. Its registered office is situated
at HR-18A, First Floor, Gali No.-10, Indl. Area Anand Parbat, Near Indl Area, New
Delhi, Central Delhi, Delhi - 110 005.

The Company holds 50% of the equity share capital of NHCPL.
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Nature of Business:

Ni Hon Cylinders Private Limited is engaged inter alia in the business to
manufacture, assemble, convert, commercialize, design, develop, display, establish,
handle, let on hire, install, maintain, operate, produce, service, supervise, supply,
import, export, buy, sell, turn to account and to do all such incidental acts and things
as authorized by the object clause of its memorandum of association

Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind - AS 110 released by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial Statements presented
by the Company include the financial statements of its subsidiary and associates.

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of the
subsidiary and associates in the prescribed form AOC - 1 is annexed to the Directors’
Report as Annexure -A and forms part of this report. The Audited Consolidated financial
statements together with Auditors’ Report forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Annual Return is available on the Company’s website at www.irmenergy.com.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as the
Company is engaged in infrastructural facilities as covered in Schedule VI of the
Companies Act, 2013. The details of investment made during the year under review are
disclosed in financial statements.

Certain Related Party transactions that were entered during the year under review were
on arm'’s length basis. The disclosure of related party transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is annexed to the Directors’
Report as Annexure -B and forms part of this report. The directors draw attention of the
Members to Note no. 33 of the Standalone Financial Statements which sets out related
party transaction disclosures.

DEPOSITS

Pursuant to Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)

(b)

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is led by the Chairman. As on March 31, 2023,
the Board of the Company comprises eight Non-executive Directors, out of which four
are Non-executive Independent Directors. The Board has one woman Independent
Director.

During the year under review, the following changes took place in the Directors:

a) Mr.Vinod Jain (DIN: 08204721), Non-executive Director, has resigned and ceased
to be a Director of the Company from his position w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

b) Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Gopal (DIN 08434324) was re-appointed as
Independent Director for the second term of five consecutive years with effect
from September 25, 2022 to September 24, 2027 by the members at the 7th
Annual General Meeting held on August 23, 2022.

c) Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak (DIN: 02658070) was appointed as Additional
Independent Director for a period of five years effective from September 24,
2022, by the Board of Directors in the Meeting held on September 24, 2022.
Further, pursuant to Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions, his appointment was regularized by the member in the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on October 07, 2022.

Based on the confirmations received from the Directors, none of the Directors are
disqualified from appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Director) Rules, 2014, the
Independent Directors have submitted their declaration of independence stating that
they meet the criteria of independence as set out in the Companies Act, 2013. In the
opinion of the Board, all the directors, as well as the directors appointed/re-
appointed during the year possess the requisite qualification, expertise, and
experience and are persons of high integrity and repute.

Mr. Badri Narayan Mahapatra (DIN: 02479848) retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment for
your approval.

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Karan Kaushal, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Harshal Anjaria, Chief Financial
Officer, and Ms. Shikha Jain, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer are the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Sections
2(51), 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force).
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Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 23 of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, has appointed Ms. Shikha Jain, the Company Secretary of
the company as Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. November 07, 2022.

EE BOARD OF DIRE R

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policies
and strategies apart from other regular business matters. A calendar of Board/
Committee meetings for the year is prepared and circulated to the Directors well in
advance to enable them to plan their schedule for effective participation in the meetings.
The Board is updated on the discussions held at the Committee meetings and the
recommendations made by various Committees.

The agenda is generally circulated a week prior to the date of the meeting and includes
detailed notes on items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an
informed decision. However, in case of urgency, the agenda is circulated on shorter notice
as per the provisions of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors.
The Company also provides facility to the Directors to attend meetings of the Board and
its Committees through Video/ Tele Conferencing mode.

During the year, eight meetings of the Board of Directors were convened. The intervening
gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

Namis of Date of Board Meeting Total No. of
Meetings
Director 19.05.22 | 22.07.22 | 24.09.22 | 07.11.22 [08.12.22 [21.12.22 |03.02.23 [22.03.23 attended
e [ o | [ A | & ] A AL A ] A 8/8
DrRaiviModi| v | v | v | v | ¥ | ¥ | v | ¥ 88
Mr. Amitabha
Hinerae v v v v v v v Vv 8/8
Mr. Vinod Jain » - - - - - - - 0/1
Mr. Badri
Mhapatri v Vv v V v V v V 8/8
Mr.
Chikmagalur
Kiinsheety Vv Vv v Vv Vv V v V 8/8
Gopal (ID)
Mr. Anand
Mohan Tiwari v Vv V v v v v Vv 8/8
(1D
Mrs. Geeta
Goradia (ID) v v v V Vv V Vv v 8/8
Mr. Rabindra
Nath Nayak (ID)| ~ g e v ¥ v * ¥ bk

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

The Independent Directors met on March 22, 2023 without the attendance of Non-
independent Directors and the members of the Management. The independent directors



reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as whole, the
performance of the Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a vital role in strengthening Corporate Governance practices
and focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters.
The Board Committees are set up under formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly
defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board as a part
of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by
the Committees and is responsible for their action. The minutes of the proceedings of the
meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review.

- Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee to review internal controls and audit
findings, review of financial statements, appointment of auditors amongst other
responsibilities as contained in the Terms of Reference. The Composition and terms of
reference of the Audit Committee satisfies the requirement of the Section 177 of the
Act and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Composition of Audit Committee is detailed below:

Sr. Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Independent Director Chairman
Gopal
2. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari Independent Director Member
3. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director Member
- inati (&) rati mmitt

The Board has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to recommend
the recruitments of MDs, WTDs, Independent Directors, KMPs, as & when applicable
to the Company and to do all the acts pursuant to provisions of Section 178 as per
Companies Act, 2013. The Composition and terms of reference of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee satisfies the requirement of the Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is detailed below:
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Sr. Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari Independent Director Chairman
2. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Independent Director Member

Gopal

3. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director Member

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder. The policy lays down the principles relating to the appointment, cessation,
remuneration and evaluation of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management of the Company. This Policy is available on the website of the Company

Le, www.irmenergy.com.

The Board has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to
formulate CSR policy, review and recommend to the Board amount of expenditure to
be incurred on the CSR activities. The Composition and terms of reference of the CSR
Committee satisfies the requirement of the Section 135 of the Act read with rules made

thereunder.

The composition of the CSR Committee is detailed below:

Sr. Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-executive Director Chairman
2. | Mr. Vinod Jain? Non-Executive Director Member
3. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Independent Director Member
Gopal
Mrs. Geeta Goradia? Independent Director Member
Mr. Amitabha Banerjee? Non-Executive Director Member

rs. Geeta Goradia appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. July 22, 2022.

4,
5.
Mr. Vinod Jain ceased to be a member w.e.f. July 13, 2022.
M
Mr. Amitabha Banerjee appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. September 24, 2022.

1.
2.
3.

The Annual Report on C5SR activities is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure
-C and forms part of this report.

The CSR policy is available on the Company’s website www.irmenergy.com as required
under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.
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Risk Management Committee

The Board has constituted the Risk Management Committee of the Board pursuant to
the resolution of the Board dated September 24, 2022, to frame, implement and
actively monitor and review the risk management plan and ensure its effectiveness.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee is detailed below:

Sr. Name of Members Category Nature of

No. Membership

1. | Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak Independent Director Chairman

2. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari Independent Director Member

3. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Independent Director Member
Gopal

4. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director Member

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board has constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board
pursuant to the resolution of the Board dated September 24, 2022, for redressing the
shareholder/investor complaints and grievances, as per the provisions of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition and terms of reference of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee satisfies the requirement of Section 178 of the
Act and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The details of the composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are given
below:

Sr. Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director Chairman
2. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Independent Director Member
Gopal
3. | Mrs. Geeta Goradia Independent Director Member
4. | Mr. Amitabha Banerjee Non-Executive Director Member
R NT

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors
state that:

i. the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and there are no material departures from the said standards;
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ii. reasonable and prudent accounting policies have been used in preparation of the
financial statements and that they have been consistently applied and that
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made in respect of items
not concluded by the year end, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit for the year ended on that date;

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

iv. the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v. proper internal financial controls were in place and were adequate and operating
effectively; and

vi. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, in consultation
with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework
containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
Company, its committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

The annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each Director have
been carried out for the financial year 2022-23 in accordance with the framework.

ISK MANAGEMENT F WORK

Pursuant to Section 134(3])(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated
and adopted the Risk Management Policy (“The Policy”).

The Policy establishes the philosophy of the Company towards risk identification,
analysis and prioritization of risks, development of risk mitigation plans and reporting
on the risk environment of the Company. This Policy is applicable to all the functions,
departments and geographical locations of the Company. The purpose of this Policy is to
define, design and implement a risk management framework across the Company to
identify, assess, manage and monitor risks. The Risk Management Committee is
responsible for reviewing the risk management framework and ensure its effectiveness.
The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls.
The major risks identified by the business are systematically addressed through
mitigation actions on continual basis.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company maintains appropriate systems of internal controls, including monitoring
procedures, to ensure that all assets and investments are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide
for adequate checks and balances and are meant to ensure that all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The Internal Auditors review the efficiency and effectiveness of these systems and
procedures. The Internal Auditors submit their Report periodically which is placed
before and reviewed by the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower
Policy in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to provide a formal
mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or
ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of
employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the company or Chairman of the Audit Committee. The policy of the vigil
mechanism is available on the Company’s website www.irmenergy.com.

SIGNIFI

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

D RES PURSUAN H X R F WOMEN AT T

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has a Policy on the Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace
which is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). The objective of this
policy is to provide an effective complaint redressal mechanism if there is an occurrence
of sexual harassment.

The Company has also set up an Internal Complaints Committee which is duly constituted
in compliance with the provisions of the POSH Act. Further, the Company also conducts
interactive sessions for employees, to build awareness about the policy and the
provisions of POSH Act.

AFETY AND ENVIR ENT ICY

The Company has formulated Health, Safety and Environment Policy to conduct the
business with a strong environmental conscience, ensuring sustainable development,
safe workplaces and enrichment of the quality of life of its employees, customers and the
community.
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M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.106625W),
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a second term
of five years from the conclusion of the 6" Annual General meeting till the conclusion 11t
Annual General Meeting.

Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2022-23 does not contain any qualification,
reservation, or adverse remark. The Auditor's Report is enclosed with the financial
statement in this Annual Report.

COST AUDIT REPORT

The Company had appointed M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 000338), Cost Accountants, as the cost auditor for the FY 2022-23.

The Board of Directors has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee re-appointed
M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000338), to audit the
Cost Accounts of the Company for Financial Year 2023- 2024.

The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditors is subject to the ratification
by the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The company has maintained the cost accounts and records in accordance with Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the Board had appointed M/s. M. C. Gupta & Co., Company Secretaries, as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to carry out the secretarial audit of the Company for
FY 2022-23. The Company has received the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
2022-23 is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure -D and forms part of this report.
There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers given by
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the auditors have not reported any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit Committee or
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request. In
terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent
to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’
particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days of the Company. If any member is
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary
in this regard.

COMPLIANCES

The Company has complied with all the statutory requirements and framed requisite
policies and procedures, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules formed thereunder.

MATERIAL CHANGES, TRANSACTIONS AND COMMITMENTS

There has not been any material change or commitment affecting the financial position
of the company which have been occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

Details of conservation of Energy, Technology and Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure -E and forms part

of this report.

PORATE GOV

A voluntary Corporate Governance Report is annexed as Annexure - F to the Director’s
report as a part of good corporate governance practice.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company continues to focus on welfare and improving the quality of lives of its
employees by providing periodic occupational health checks, spiritual peace by yoga
classes, organising sport activities and providing housing loan interest subsidy & interest
free loans for the employee wellness. The Company will continue to implement a variety
of initiatives to align employees’ personal goals with the Company's goals. As on March
31,2023, the Company had 164 permanent employees on the roll of the Company and 55
employees on contractual basis.

Your directors place on record, their sincere appreciation of the significant contribution
made by the employees atall levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks to the Financial
Institutions, Banks and Government Agencies, for their support and co-operation. Your
Directors also acknowledge the trust reposed in the company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Date: May 31, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

Maheswar Sahu
Chairman
DIN: 00034051
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries

[Amount are in Million Indian Rs.)

Sr. Name of Subsidiary SKI-Clean Energy
No. Private Limited
1. | Reporting period 21 September 2022
to March 31, 2023
2. Reporting currency /Exchange rate INR
3. Share capital 0.50
4, Reserves & surplus (0.45)
5. Total assets 0.09
6. Total Liabilities 0.04
7. Investments Nil
B. Turnover Mil
9, Profit before taxation (0.38)
10. | Provision for taxation (0.03)
11. | Profit after taxation (0.35)
12. | Proposed Dividend Nil
13. | % of Shareholding 70%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - SKI-Clean Energy Private

Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil



Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

(Amount are in Million Indian Rs.)

Sr | Name of Associates Farm Gas | Venuka Polymers | Ni Hon
No. Private Limited | Private Limited Cylinders
Private
Limited
1. | Latest Balance sheet date 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023
2. | Date on which Associate or 09.12.2019 19.12.2019 30.03.2022
Joint Ventures was associated
or acquired
3. | Shares of Associate or Joint
Ventures held by the Company
on the year end
No. 17,21,344 10,50,800 50,000
Amount of Investment in 17.21 1.05 0.05
Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of holding (%) 50% 50% 50%
4. | Description of how there is % of holding % of holding % of holding
significant influence
5. | Reason why the associate/joint N.A. N.A. N.A.
venture is not consolidated
6. | Net worth attributable to 248.33 30.58 1.62
Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet
7. | Profit / Loss for the year 125.24 8.27 0.45
Considered in Consolidation 62.62 413 0.22
Not Considered in 62.62 4,13 0.22
Consolidation

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

' SV

—

Maheswar Sahu
Chairman
DIN: 00034051

Harshal Anjaria
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 31, 2023

ot

Karan Kaushal
Chief Executive Officer

Qo

Shikha Jain
Company Secretary




FORM NO.AOC- 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with Related Parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under the third
proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:
Sr. | Name of | Nature of Duration of | Salient Justification | Date of | Amoun | Date of
No.| the Contracts/ | Contracts/ | terms of for entering | approv | tpaid passing
related Arrangemen | Arrangemen | Contracts/ | intosuch al by as Special
party and | ts/ ts/ Arrangemen | Contracts/ | Board | advanc | Resoluti
Nature of | Transaction | Transaction | ts/ Arrangemen es, if on
the 5 5 Transaction | ts/f any
Relations 5, if any Transaction
hip 5
NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:
Sr. | Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date of Amount
No. | related party Contracts,/ Contracts/ Contracts/ approval | paidas
and Nature of Arrangements/ Arrangements/ Arrangements/ by Beard | advances,
the Transactions Transactions Transactions, if ifany
Belationship any
NIL

Date: May 31, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

For and on behalf of the Board

Maheswar Sahu
Chairman
DIN: 00034051
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company’s CSR policy intends to operate its activities in providing clean energy solutions
to its customers in a manner that is efficient, safe & ethical, which minimizes negative impact
on the environment and enhances the quality of life of the community, towards sustaining a
holistic business. The Company undertakes a number of CSR activities in the larger interest of
the community, especially in the area of clean energy promotion, health, education, women
empowerment, and childcare and environment protection.

The CSR policy of the Company covers the proposed CSR activities in line with Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule VII thereto. The CSR Policy of the Company may be
accessed on the Company’s website www.irmenergy.com.

2. The Composition of CSR Committee:

2022

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR
Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of
Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

5. (a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)

6. (a)

Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of
section 135.

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
sub-section (5) of section 135.

Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial years.

Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.
Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].

Amount spent on C5R Projects (both Ongoing Project and
other than Ongoing Project)

18 Name ofDirector Designation Number of Number of
No. J Nature of | meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Directorship| Committeeheld Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Chairman 2 2
2. | Mr.Chikmagalur Kalasheety Member 2 2
Gopal
3. | Mr.Vinod Jain? Member 1 1
4. | Mrs. Geeta Goradia? Member i & 1
5. | Mr. Amitabha Banerjee? Member 1 -
1. Mr. Vinod Jain ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f. July 13, 2022.
2. Mrs. Geeta Goradia appointed as a member of the committee w.ef. July 22, 2022.
3. Mr. Amitabha Banerjee appointed as a member of the committee w.e.f. September 24,

https://www.irmener
gyv.com/investor/

Not Applicable

Rs.76,02,22,880/-
Rs.1,52,04,458/-
Mil

Nil
Rs.1,52,04,458 /-
Rs. 1,56,00,000/- spent

on other than Ongoing
CSR Projects



(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. NA
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c]]. Rs. 1,56,00,000/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
P Finaseial Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund
Year. (in Rs.) to Unspent CSR Accountas | specified under Schedule VII as per
' 2 per sub- section (6) of second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135, section 135.
Amount. Date of Name of the | Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
Rs. 1,56,00,000 - - - - -

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

: Amount
Sl No. Particular (in Bs.)
(1) (2) (3)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-

(i) sectiﬂpn (5) ufsectinnaiEES b PP 1.52,04.458
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,56,00,000
(iii) | Excessamount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 3,95,542
] Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ;
(iv) activities of the previousFinancial Years, if any ik
Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-

™ | vy

3,95,542

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial

Years:
1 2 3 4 5 [ 7 8

5l. |Preceding| Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred | Amount [Deficiency,
Mo | Financial | transferred | Amountin | Spentin | to aFund as specified |[remaining| ifany
Year(s) | tounspent |UnspentCSR the |under Schedule VII as [to bespent
CSR Account| Account |Financial|per second proviso to in
under sub- | undersub- | Year (in | sub-section (5) of |succeeding
section (6) of|section (6) of] Rs) section 135,ifany | Financial

se-;;.t]i]n;sl]ES SEE;“;::}BE Amount Date of [";:::g]
; i {in Rs) Transfer]
FY-1 NIL
2 FY-2 MIL
FY-3 MIL

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amountspent in the Financial Year:

@® yes (O no

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired 8
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Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

SL
No.

Short particulars of

the property or
asset(s)
[including

complete address
and location of the

property]

Pin
Code o
the
proper
ty or
asset(s

)

Date of
creation

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent
(Rs.In
Lakhs)

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
the registered owner

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

CSR
Registration
Number, if
applicable

Name

Registered
address

CNC Lathe Machine
(Model: JK-180)
Address: ADS
Foundation CoE,
Beside Jagannath
Temple Road, Nr.
Shani Temple,
Behind Trimandir,
Adalaj,
Gandhinagar

382421

30-12-2022

10.00

CSRO0007314

CNC Lathe Machine
(Model: [K-180)
Address: ADS
Foundation  Skill
Centre- Bharuch,
UPL University,
Block MNo: 402,
Ankleshwar - Valia
Rd, Vataria,
Gujarat

393135

30-12-2022

10.00

52-Seater CNG
School Bus (SML
Isuzu)

Address: ADS
Foundation CoE,
Beside Jagannath
Temple Road, Nr.
Shani Temple,
Behind Trimandir,
Adalaj,
Gandhinagar

382421

03-08-2022

25.00

Maruti Suzuki Eeco
- CNG

Address: ADS
Foundation  Skill
Centre - Morva
Hadaf, 120,
Chariya, Faliyu,
Morva Hadaf,
Panchmabhal,

Gujarat

389115

23-02-2023

7.35

ADS
Foundation

2nd Floor, Kailash
B, 5 Sumangalam
C.H.5.L., Beside
HDFC Bank,
Drive In Road,
Ahmedabad -
380054,Gujarat.
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Sl
No.

Short particulars nf‘
the property or
asset(s)
[including
complete address
and location of the

property]

Pin
Code of
the
proper
tyor
asset(s

)

Date of
creation

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent
(Rs.In
Lakhs)

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
the registered owner

Set up Skill Centre
and Lab
Infrastructure
Address:
Foundation
Centre
Hadaf,
Chariva,
Morva
Panchmahal,
Gujarat

ADS
Skill
Maorva
120,
Faliyu,
Hadaf,

389115

31-03-2023

10.00

Setting
laboratory
infrastructure
Address: Indrashil
University (a
Division of
Indrashil Kaka-Ba
and Kala-Budh
Public Charitable
Trust)-  Campus
Address: PO:
Rajpur, Taluka
Kadi, Dist:
Mehsana, Gujarat.

up

382715

31-03-2023

39.00

(CSRO0003497

24 Computers

Address: Indrashil
University (a
Division af
Indrashil Kaka-Ba
and Kala-Budh
Public Charitable
Trust)- Campus
Address: PO:
Rajpur, Taluka
Kadi, Dist:
Mehsana, Gujarat.

382715

06-03-2023

977

2 Laptops

Address: Indrashil
University (a
Division af
Indrashil Kaka-Ba
and Kala-Budh
Public Charitable
Trust)-  Campus
Address: PO:
Rajpur, Taluka
Kadi, Dist:

382715

Mehsana, Gujarat.

31-03-2023

0.23

Indrashil
Kaka Ba &
Kaka Budh

Public
Charitable
Trust

"Kaka-Ba" 13,
Sanjiv Baug, New
Sharda Mandir
Road, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat- 380007
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Sl
No.

Short particulars of]

the property or
asset(s)
[including
complete address
and location of the

property]

Date of
creation

Pin
Code of]
the
proper
ty or
asset(s

)

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of
the registered owner

Passenger Vehicle
CNG

Address: Indrashil
University (a
Division of
Indrashil Kaka-Ba
and Kala-Budh
Public Charitable
Trust)-  Campus
Address: PQ:
Rajpur, Taluka
Kadi, Dist:
Mehsana, Gujarat.

382715|22-02-2023

12.00

10.

Cost of hydroponic
units

Address: Village:
Forna and Kotda
Taluka Deodar,
Dis. Banaskantha,

385330(29-12-2023

1.06

Gujarat

Post Box No. 71, at
village Chosala,
Dahod, Gujarat-

389151.

CSRO0000285|N M Sadguru
Water and
Development]

Foundation

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

otk

oo

Mr. Karan Kaushal

Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 31, 2023

R ¥

f.-'-—"
Mr. Maheswar Sahu
Chairman CSE. Committee
DIN: 00034051
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* March, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) af the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

IRM Energy Limited,

4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Near Sola Bridge,

S G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by IRM Energy Limited (CIN: U40100GJ2015PLC085213).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of IRM Energy Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31* March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IRM Energy Limited, having its Registered Office at 4" Floor, Block 8, Magnet
Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, S G Highway, Ahmedabad 380 054 for the financial year ended
on 31% March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(Mot Applicable)

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘*SEBI Act™):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Mot Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;



Annexure - D

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employece Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021 and; (Not Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Mot Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

vi.  The Company has complied with the following specifically other applicable laws to the
Company:

(a) The Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2006;
(b) The Environment (Protection) Act 1986;

(¢) The Explosives Act, 1884;

(d) The Gujarat State Disaster Management Act, 2003;

(e) The Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2016.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

il.  The Company is not a listed entity and the compliance of the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable except
specifically applicable provisions.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except the delayed filing of Form FC-GPR,
for which late fee imposed by the Reserve Bank of India has been paid.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with

the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

There were no dissenting views on any matter.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has no specific events / actions having a
major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. except the following:
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1. The Company has jointly promoted a company viz. SKI-Clean Energy Private Limited on
September 21, 2022, holding 70% subscribed share capital in the said company.

2. The members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 7" October, 2022
had resolved to issue up to 2,75,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a
premium of Rs. 540/~ per Equity Share to Shizuoka Gas Co Limited, Japan, on private
placement basis.

3. The members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 16th November,
2022 had resolved to issue up to 1,17,68,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium to
public through Initial Public Offer (IPO) and to submit Draft RHP to SEBI and also to alter/
amend certain Articles of the Articles of Association of the Company.

4. The Management Committee authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meetings held on 2nd September, 2022 has allotted 6,15,000 equity shares of face value of Rs.
10/- each a premium of Rs. 415/~ per share and other meeting held on 2 December, 2022 has
allotted 2,75,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 540/- per
Equity Share to Shizuoka Gas Co Limited, Japan.

5. The members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26" December,
2022 had resolved to amend by insertion of Article 117A of the Articles of Association
relating to providing a right to EDMPL to nominate one director on the Board of Directors of
the Company, so long as it continues to hold at least 15% of the paid- up share capital of the

company.

6. SEBI has granted its in-principle approval having validity of 12 months to the proposed IPO
of the Company for issuance of the Equity Shares on 21* February, 2023. The Company is yet
to file the Red Herring Prospectus with Registrar of Companies, Gujarat.

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCHN: 51986GJ003400

Mahesh C Gupta

Place: Ahmedabad Proprietor

Date: 31* May, 2023 FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)
Peer Review No.579/2019

UDIN: FOO2047E000437614

Note: This Report is to be read with Our Letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure “A" and
Jorms an integral part of this report.



To.
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Annexure: “AY

The Members,

IEM Energy Limited,

4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Mear Sola Bridge,

S G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054,

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this Letter;

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Secretarial Records based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was limited to the
verification of the procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCHN: 51986GJ003400
Mahesh C Gupta
Place: Ahmedabad Proprietor
Date: 31 May, 2023 FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)

Peer Review No.579/2019
UDIN: FO02047E000437614
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Qutgo required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) Your Company has taken various steps for conservation of energy, which are as
under:

1.

Installation of APFC (Automatic Power Factor Controller) panels at all the 59 CNG
stations at all the Geographical Areas which includes 9 additional APFC panel
installed in FY 2022-23: Automatic power factor controller has been installed at
all CNG stations with 4 quadrant energy meters, in order to maintain power factor
to ~ 0.99.

Additional deployment of 9 nos. of HCVs - engine complying BS-VI Norms (inbuilt
SCR - Selective Catalytic Reduction and DPF - Diesel Particulate Filter) which
assists in reducing air pollution and improving energy efficiency of engine.

6 nos. High Speed Diesel fueled LCVs Replaced with CNG fueled LCVs during the
year. Furthermore, 9 nos. LCVs shall be deployed/converted on CNG in next
financial year.

Deployed 38 nos. of Type-I1l mobile cascades which includes 5 additional Type-III
mobile cascades in FY 2022-23. It can transport average 95% more CNG quantity
in the same RTKM as compare to Type-I/Conventional Mobile cascades, hence the
transportation of CNG became more efficient and hassle free. Also, deployed 3 nos.
Type-1V mobile cascades which includes 2 additional deployments in FY 2022-23.
In addition to average 95 % more gas carrying capacity, it helps in improving
vehicle mileage because of its lesser weight with compared to Type-
I/Conventional Mobile cascades.

Total 66 numbers of conventional lights have been replaced with LED lights having
649% lesser wattage specifications with compared to conventional lights on 12 nos.
CNG stations in BK GA and ensuring mandatory usage of LED lights only on all new
upcoming CNG stations to reduce electricity consumption.

All CNG operators, LCV/HCV Drivers and Fillers have been provided Safety
Training and Occupational Competency (STOC) training & HCV drivers have been
trained under ‘Defensive Driving Program’ to perform safe CNG operation
activities across all GAs with optimum usage of necessary resources maintaining
safe working environment.

Electric vehicle (EV) charging facility has been made available on 2 CNG stations
in BK GA to cater customers having Electrical vehicles and to promote usage of
green fuel over conventional fuel used by customers.

With continued operation of LNG/LCNG facility in DGS GA, catering CNG & PNG
customers with lesser overall sum of electricity consumption & transportation
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cost per kg which also helps in reducing numbers of movement of gas carrying
vehicles on roads.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

1. Erection of Solar plant having 3.123 MW DC capacity has been completed which
shall compensate electricity consumption of 23 CNG stations in Banaskantha GA.

2. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

Rs. 13.68 Cr. towards erection (with material supply) & commissioning of 3.123
MW DC solar plant for the year ending March 31, 2023.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The dynamic business model of your Company ensures that we are abreast of the
changing needs of our customers, with a focus on innovation and technology
adaptation. Such technology adoptions have helped us in the improvement of the
efficiency and accuracy of the systems, thereby leading to savings in operational

costs.

Major efforts made towards the technology adoption in different segments of the
Company are as follows:

1. Compressed Natural Gas ("CNG") Segment:

a)

b)

d)

Upgradation of all remaining Fill post and Decanting Post to %" has been
completed resulting in 13% Fast CNG filling in Mobile cascades as compared to
conventional 3/8" size Fill post/Decanting Post at CNG stations which
minimizes numbers of start-stop of compressor and reduced power
consumption of Booster compressor.

Commenced all mother station Fill post Automation with Radio Frequency
Identification (RFID) technology that made value addition in the CNG Fill post
operations over the conventional filling system in order to reduce the human
error and to reduce hard paper usage for record keeping at CNG fill post area.

Continued and completed Installation of DVR and NVR setup of Hikvision at
total of 44 nos. CNG Stations of All GAs in phase-1 & Phase-II to monitor the CNG
operational area and forecourt area. Data collected from each site can be
viewed through the Hyper Multimedia monitoring server in Master SCADA
Control Room at Banaskantha & at redundant SCADA control room as well.

With continued progress, total 59 CNG stations at all Geographical Areas have
been integrated with SCADA (Supervisory Control And Data Acquisition)
communication system to monitor and control CNG operational parameters till
completion of FY 2022-23.

All mobile cascade vehicles are being monitored through vehicle tracking
system (VTS) which has enhanced vehicle movement tracking and brought in
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optimum vehicle movement on roads reducing unnecessary extra RTKM.
Hence it has assisted reducing unnecessary fuel consumption and pollution on
roads.

Complaint Management System (CMS) has been brought on cloud to log and
track all complaints digitally. Hence CNG can be made available for maximum
possible time period on all CNG stations through monitoring of complaints on
CMS online portal which can also provide real time complaint status.

2. Piped Natural Gas (“PNG") Segment:

a)

b)

d)

The billing process in the PNG Domestic segment has become more cost
efficient with full implementation of SPOT billing across all GAs, minimizing the
cost of meter reading and billing as well as resulting in faster recovery of
payments from customers.

Integration of PNG domestic billing system with digital payment solutions such
as Bharat BillPay, Bill Desk, Paytm, WhatsApp and dynamic QR code resulted
in faster receipt of payment from customers and reduced manual cash
collection and deposit process at IRMEL's Customer Care Centres.

Use of network simulation software “Gasworks” leverages in developing
inhouse capability to design and upgrade gas pipeline network in an optimum
way.

Implementation of a Geographic Information System (GIS) helps in viewing the
entire gas grid and associated assets on a single platform. The following
modules have been incorporated in the GIS system to increase operational
efficiency:

i. Preventive Maintenance Module (“PMM") has been implemented for
scheduling preventive maintenance plans as per predefined frequency.
The module facilitates users to update the plan and monitor the
performance.

ii. Incidentreporting module has been implemented to report incidents on
real-time basis. A mobile app is integrated with this module to facilitate
users at the site to update the incident status. The module has features
which provide users information regarding affected customers and gas
assets and help them in the faster restoration of the gas supply. This
module facilitates to manage incidents at the site in coordination with
centralized control room, real-time analysis of active sites with third
party activities (geo-tagging) and network surveillance to monitor
health of assets.

(as Sales and Purchase Reporting module facilitates in preparation of the
consolidated report of sales against the purchase quantity which helps users to
monitor gas reconciliation of individual GA as well as across all GA. The module
is integrated with email gateway so that the report can be shared through a
system-generated email thereby minimizes human intervention.

Industrial Automated Meter Reading (“AMR") system has been implemented
for automated logging and receipt of gas consumption and flow rate which
facilitate user to access consolidated and individual industrial consumption.
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The AMR system is integrated with email gateway to share the consumption
report to users through system generated email at predefined time thereby
reduced human intervention.

Ultrasonic Flow meters with Electronic Volume Corrector ("EVC") cum data
loggers has been installed in all DRS units to monitor critical parameters such
as pressure, temperature, flow rate and consumption thereby leverages
monitoring of gas grid performance. Users can access the data in report format
through a web portal and utilize it in decision-making process to ensure
uninterrupted gas supply to customer. This also facilitate in gas reconciliation
of the DRS downstream network to keep a check on gas loss.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development and import substitution:

a)

b)

d)

With the implementation of Centralized CCTV Monitoring System, Real-time
surveillance of 24/7 is helpful in preventing theft of company asset and
reduced security costs.

In the GIS implementation phase, gas assets mapping in GIS was outsourced to
IRMEL's GIS implementation partner. In order to improve operational
efficiency and to facilitate the mapping of gas assets in GIS at the time of
commissioning, a GIS integrated mobile application has been implemented
which restricted outsourced services. Subsequently, network mapping has
been majorly done through in-house team thereby contributed in cost
reduction.

The GIS system facilitates to share the network information to other utilities
which allows them to trace the existing gas network in their work plan and take
preventive measures while executing project work. This feature of GIS
facilitates other utilities to identify gas networks which otherwise would have
damaged the gas network contributing to revenue loss.

Use of mobile app for incident logging and communication to concerned
officials play a significant part as it allows operations team to be notified about
the incident/emergency and respond promptly specifically in case of
emergency/third party damages which would otherwise lead to prolonged gas
supply stoppage or gas loss due to delay in response time and that would
ultimately contribute in revenue loss.

In the initial years of operation, a localized emergency number was provided
in the individual area of operations where calls from customers or third party
received and responded accordingly. This practice has limitation in logging the
complaint/incident on real-time basis. With the implementation of GIS based
incident reporting module (integrated with incident management mobile app)
and centralized call centre with toll-free helpline numbers, the operator at
centralized call centre receives call on toll-free number and log the incident in
GIS. An incident notification is generated and received by designated
officials/field staffs having incident mobile app installed in their mobile. The
app facilitates the officials/field staffs to navigate and reach to incident
location at shortest possible time and further update about the incident in
mobile app. The mobile app also facilitates patrolman to log digging activity by
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third party which enables operations team to enforce preventive measures
during digging/excavation.

IRMEL performs preventive maintenance of gas assets as per the Annual
Operations and Maintenance Plan with frequency in line with the requirement
of PNGRB regulations as well as OEM recommendations. Initially, the AOMP
has been executed and monitored through an excel sheet. With increase in gas
assets and scattered area of operations, it was challenging to execute
preventive maintenance plan using excel tracker. In order to execute the
preventive maintenance plan efficiently, a preventive maintenance module has
been developed and implemented using GIS platform. A system generated
monthly preventive maintenance plan is generated on 1st of every month. The
designated officials can update and close the activities once the PM has been
completed. With implementation of GIS PM module, operations team can
effectively execute and monitor the PM plan which will improve the gas assets
performance and avoid revenue loss due to equipment breakdown.

IRMEL receives natural gas from gas transportation company (GAIL, GSPL) at
facility known as “City Gate Station (CGS)" wherein custody transfer of gas
takes place from transporter’s pipeline to IRMEL's CGD pipeline network. As a
standard procedure, the gas received at CGS has to be reconciled against
various point of sale (CNG stations, industrial, commercial and domestic
consumers) on daily basis to keep a check on Lost & Unaccounted for Gas
(LUAG). This procedure enables O0&M team to take preventive actions to
restrict LUAG within limits which otherwise may have led to gas loss and would
have contributed in revenue loss. Previously, IRMEL's team used to prepare a
report in Excel format “Gas Sale and Purchase Report” and share it with
designated officials via email on daily basis. The report requires gas receipt and
sale quantities from custody transfer metering at CGS as well as point of sales
(CNG stations, industrial, commercial and domestic consumers). For industrial
and CNG sales, earlier practice was manual readings taken by PNG & CNG 0&M
field staffs and shared through WhatsApp messenger as well as excel report.
With scattered area of operations, increase in number of customers and CNG
stations, manual readings became an exhaustive exercise demanding
engagement of a greater number of manpower and resources. In addition,
report compilation was also taking considerable amount of time due to delay
in receipt of gas quantity data from all point of sale as well as entries through
multiple data sources. Moreover, accessing historical gas sale and purchase
data was possible only through email history which is also creating operational
challenges. In order to overcome the challenges, IRMEL team has developed
and implement automation in CNG and PNG Industrial consumers. Accordingly,
SCADA system has been implemented in operations and automated metering
of CNG stations and gradually all CNG stations covered in SCADA system which
allows receipt of gas quantity from CNG point of sale in a timely manner
without human intervention. Similarly, an automated metering system has
been implemented in all industrial metering facility which enables auto receipt
of industrial daily consumption and auto-email of an excel report of gas
quantity of individual industrial customers. The AMR system also provides
hourly flow rate pattern of industrial customers which enables operations
team to keep a check on gas over drawl by customers.

With implementation of SCADA in CNG and AMR in industrial consumers,
receipt of data from point of sale has been streamlined. However, report
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compilation and historical data access still remain a challenge due to absence
of database management system. IRMEL has implemented a Gas Sale and
Purchase reporting module using GIS platform which facilitate to upload the
gas purchase and receipt quantity in a predefined format. Once uploaded, the
daily report is automatically generated and shared via email to designated
officials. The GSPR module facilitate to access historical data also which is very
helpful in future gas demand requirement assessment.

Operator allocation modality from old model (Individual Operator allocation
to each CNG compressor) has been switched over to new model (cluster based
operator allocation along with SCADA implementation) to enhance better CNG
operation utilizing optimum resources. It has reduced cost of CNG operation &
maintenance drastically.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year): None

a)
b)
c)
d)

the details of technology imported: NA

the year of import: NA

whether the technology has been fully absorbed: NA

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reason thereof: NA

(iv) Expenditure on R&D (Rs. In lacs): Nil

i

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Amount in Crores)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Foreign Exchange earned 43.83 Nil
Foreign Exchange outgo 2.60 Nil
(Including import of goods on CIF basis)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

IRM Energy Limited ("IRMEL" / “the Company”) believes that good Corporate Governance
practices ensure ethical and efficient conduct of the affairs of the Company in a transparent
manner and help in maximizing value for all the stakeholders like members, customers,
employees, contractors, vendors, and the society at large. Good Corporate Governance
practices help in building an environment of trust and confidence among all the constituents.

We believe that Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly
improve sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively and
constantly strive to achieve. Our multiple initiatives towards maintaining the highest
standards of governance are detailed hereinafter.

The Corporate Governance framework of the Company is based on the following broad
practices:
a) Engaging a diverse and highly professional, experienced and competent Board of
Directors, with versatile expertise in industry, finance, management and law.
b) Deploying well defined governance structures that establishes checks and balances
and delegates decision making to appropriate levels in the organization.
c] Adoption and implementation of fair, transparent and robust systems, processes,
policies and procedures.
d) Making timely and requisite disclosures for dissemination of information to all its
stakeholders.
e) Having strong systems and processes to ensure full and timely compliance with all
regulatory requirements.

The Company believes that sustainable and long-term growth of every stakeholder depends
upon the judicious and effective use of available resources and consistent endeavor to
achieve excellence in business along with participation in the growth of society, building of
environmental balances and significant contribution in economic growth.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the apex body overseeing the Company's overall functioning. It
provides strategic direction, leadership, and guidance to the Company’s management and
also monitors the performance of the Company with the objective of creating long-term
value for the Company’s stakeholders.
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The Board composition is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, ("Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from
time to time. The Board of Directors of the Company is led by the Non-Executive Director
designated as the Chairman. As on March 31, 2023, the Board of the Company comprises
eight Directors out of which four Directors are Non-Executive Directors and four Directors
are Non-executive Independent Directors. The Board has one woman Non-Executive
Independent Director.

During the year under review, the following changes took place in the Directors:

a) Mr.Vinod Jain (DIN: 08204721), Non-Executive Director, had resigned and ceased to
be a Director of the Company from his position w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

b) Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Gopal (DIN: 08434324) was re-appointed as
Independent Director for the second term of five consecutive years with effect from
September 25, 2022 to September 24, 2027 by the members at the 7th Annual
General Meeting held on August 23, 2022.

¢) Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak (DIN: 02658070) was appointed as Additional
Independent Director for the first term of five years effective from September 24,
2022, at the Meeting of the Board of Directors held on September 24, 2022. His
appointment was regularized by the members at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
held on October 07, 2022.

All Independent Directors have confirmed in accordance with Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations that they meet the independence criteria as mentioned under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder. Based on the disclosures received from all the Independent Directors, the Board
is of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of Independence as
specified in the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations and they are independent of the
Management.

During FY 2022-23, the composition and categories of the Directors on the Board, their
attendance at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), and their Directorship(s), Committee
Membership(s), or Chairpersonship(s) in other companies are provided below:
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Name of the DIN Category |Sharcholding| Whether No. of Details of
Director in the attended | Directorship(s) Committees )
Company | thelast | in other listed | Member|Chairperson
AGM companies

Mr. Maheswar|00034051| Chairman & 1,40,718 Yes 3 B 3
Sahu MNon- Equity shares

Executive

Director
Dr Rajiv|01394558 Mon- - No 0 1 0
Indravadan Executive
Modi Director
Mr. Amitabha|05152456 MNon- - Yes 1] 1 0
Banerjee Executive

Director
Mr: Badri|02479848 Non- - Yes 1] 0 1]
Marayan Executive
Mahapatra Director
Mr. Vinod Jain|08204721 Non- - NA ] 0 0
(2} Executive

Director
Mr. 08434324 | Independent - MNo 1 4 3
Chikmagalur Director
Kalasheety
Gopal
Mr Anand 02986260 | Independent - No 1 1 0
Mohan Tiwari Director
Mrs. Geeta|00074343| Independent - No 2 3 0
Amit Goradia Director
Mr.  Rabindra|02658070 | Independent - NA 1 4 1
Nath Nayak (%) Director

(1) Pertains to memberships/chairpersonships of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of the Company and other public companies as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

(2) Mr. Vinod Jain ceased to be Director w.ef. July 13, 2022

(3] Mr Rabindra Nath Nayak appointed as Independent Director w.e.f. September 24, 2022.

The names of the other listed companies where Directors of the Company hold directorship
and their category of directorship as on March 31, 2023, are given below:

Sr. | Name of Directors Name of other listed companies Category of directorship
No.
1. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Ambuja Cements Limited Independent Director
Diamond Power Infrastructure Limited | Independent Director
Maruti Suzuki India Limited Independent Director
2. | Mr. Chikmagalur | Astral Limited Independent Director
Kalasheety Gopal
3. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari Transpek Industry Limited Independent Director
4. | Mrs. Geeta Amit Goradia Transpek Industry Limited Independent Director
Panasonic Energy India Company | Independent Director
Limited
5. | Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak Diamond Power Infrastructure Limited | Independent Director
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The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policies
and strategies apart from other regular business matters. A calendar of Board/ Committee
meetings for the year is prepared and circulated to the Directors well in advance to enable
them to plan their schedule for effective participation in the meetings. The Board is updated
on the discussions held at the Committee meetings and the recommendations made by
various Committees.

The agenda is generally circulated a week prior to the date of the meeting and includes
detailed notes on items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an
informed decision. However, in case of urgency, the agenda is circulated on shorter notice as
per the provisions of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors. The
Company also provides the facility to the Directors to attend meetings of the Board and its
Committees through Video/ Tele Conferencing mode.

During the year, eight meetings of the Board of Directors were convened. The intervening
gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

Date of Board Meeting Total No. of

Name of Director Meetings

19.0522 | 22.07.22 [24.0922 | 07.11.22 (0B1222 |21.1222 | 03.02.23 | 22.03.23 | attended
Mr. Maheswar
el v | v v | v | v | v v |V 8/
Dr. Rajiv 1. Modi W o v N J N v 3 8/8
Mr. Amitabha
Banerjee v v v v v v v v a8/8
Mr. Vinod Jain® w - - - - - - 0/1
Mr. Badri
Miksaaatic v v v v v v v v 8/8
Mr. Chilkmagalur
Kalasheety v V v v Vv v Vv v 8/8
Gopal (1D)
Mr. Anand Mohan
Tiwari (ID) V v v v v Vv V v 8/8
Mrs. Gee
Goradia (ID) ta1 v v v v v v v v 8/8
Mr. Rabindra Nath
Nayak® (D) = 2 . v Vv v x v 4/5

*Mr. Vinod Jain ceased to be Director w.e.f. July 13, 2022
#Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak appointed as Independent Director we.f. September 24, 2022.

- ionshi i r

None of the directors are related to each other.

As a practice, all new Directors (including Independent Directors) inducted to the Board are
given a formal orientation. The Directors are usually encouraged to visit the geographical
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areas where the company operates and interact with members of Senior Management as part
of the induction programme. The Senior Management make presentations giving an
overview of the Company's strategy, operations, products, markets, group structure,
subsidiary and associates, the major risks, and risk management strategy. This enables the
Directors to get a deep understanding of the Company, its people, values and culture and
facilitates their active participation in overseeing the performance of the Management. The
Company has adopted policy on Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors, the
details of the familiarisation programme of the Independent Directors are available on the

website of the Company at the link: https: //www.irmenergy.com/

kills /experti m ctor

The list of core skills/ expertise/competencies as identified by the Board of Directors in the
context of its business and sector for it to function effectively and those available with the
Board are as under:

Skills Particulars

Ability to envision the future and prescribe a strategic goal for the
Company, help the Company to identify possible road maps,
inspire and motivate the strategy, approach, processes and other
such key deliverables and mentor the leadership team to
channelize its energy/efforts in appropriate direction.

Ability to understand long-term trends, make strategic choices
and experience in guiding and leading management teams to make
decisions in uncertain environments.

Ability to understand the wvarious risks and ensure that
appropriate policies and procedures are in place to effectively
manage risk, in depth knowledge and skills in accounting, financial
management, financial reporting processes, budgeting, audit,
capital allocation, taxation, treasury operations.

Leadership

Strategy and Planning

Risk Management, Audit &
Finance and Accounts

Project | Ability to understand emerging trends in product design and

and

Operations

Management
Technology/ Innovation

development, research, disruptions in technology and in business
models.

Governance, Legal
Compliance and Regulatory
Affairs

Ability to understand relevant laws, regulations, and regulatory
frameworks applicable to the industry, desigring compliance
framewaorks, conducting risk assessments, implementing controls,
and ability to navigate complex ethical considerations in legal and
regulatory compliance.

Global experience/
international exposure

Ability to have access to and understanding the business models
of global corporations, as well as staying informed about
developments in leading companies and assist the company in
adapting to the local environment, understanding geopolitical
dynamics, and building a network of contacts

Merger and Acquisitions

Ability to envision how combining two or more companies can
achieve synergies, competitive advantages, and growth
opportunities, assess the value of companies accurately, and
understanding the impact of potential transactions




The mapping of the Skill Matrix for all Directors is as follows:

Name of Director Skills
Leadership | Strategy Risk Operations | Governan | Global Merger
and Manageme | Project ce, Legal | experienc | and
Planning | nt, Audit & | Manageme | Complian | ef Acquisitio
Finance nt and | c¢  and | internatio | ns
and Technology | Regulator | nal
Accounts / y Affairs exposure
Innovation
Mr. Maheswar Sahu L v v g ..r ¥ v
Dr. Rajiv 1. Modi v v ¥ v v v
Mr. Amitabha Banerjee v v ¥ v + Py
Mr. Badri Mahapatra v o H ¥ v v =
Mr. Chikmagalur ¥ ¥ ¥ v o v &
Kalasheety Gopal
Mr. Anand Mohan L v ¥ g v v +
Tiwari
Mrs. Geeta Goradia ¥ v v v v v
Mr. Rabindra Nath ¥ ¥ “
Nayak
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

- AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee to review internal controls and audit
findings, review of financial statements, and appointment of auditors amongst other
responsibilities as contained in the Terms of Reference. The Composition and terms of
reference of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 177 of the Act and
Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

Terms of Reference:

The following revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted by the
Board at its meeting held on September 24, 2022:

1=

Z.

Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that its financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;
Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment, replacement,
remuneration and terms of appointment of the statutory auditor and the fixation of
the audit fee of the Company;

Reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor’s independence and performance,
and effectiveness of audit process;

Approving payments to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;
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6.
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Formulating a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of

related party transactions

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s

report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference

to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section
134 of the Companies Act;

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment
by management;

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
(g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.
Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval;
Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. This also includes
monitoring the use fapplication of the funds raised through the proposed initial public
offer by the Company;

Approval or any subsequent modifications of transactions of the Company with

related parties and omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be

entered into by the Company, subject to the conditions as may be prescribed
Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as
provided in Clause 2(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable
Accounting Standards and/or the Companies Act, 2013;

10. Reviewing, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of the related party transactions

entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given;

11. Scrutinising of inter-corporate loans and investments;

12.Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

13. Evaluating of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

14. Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine

concerns or grievances, with the chairman of the Audit Committee directly hearing
grievances of victimization of employees and directors, who used vigil mechanism to
report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases;

15. Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors,

and adequacy of the internal control systems;
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16. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function if any, including the structure of
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

17. Discussing with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

18. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

19. Discussing with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

20. Recommending to the board of directors the appointment and removal of the external
auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for any other services;

21. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors;

22. Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

23. Approving the appointment of the chief financial officer or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

24. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

25. Overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the chairman of
the Audit Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of employees and
directors, who used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and
exceptional cases;

26. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee and any other terms of reference as may be decided by the Board and/or
specified/provided under the Companies Act, the Listing Regulations or by any other
regulatory authority;

27. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in any subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as per applicable law;

28. Formulating a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of
related party transactions;

29. Recommending to the board of directors the appointment and removal of the external
auditor, fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for any other services; and

30. Consider and comment on rationale, cost benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

31. To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the Terms
of Reference of Audit Committee from time to time;

32.Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Audit Committee
as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when
amended from time to time,

Powers of the Audit Committee
The powers of the Audit Committee shall include the following:
1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;
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. To seek information from any employee;

. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; and

4. To secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers
necessary;

5. Such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing

Regulations.

L ka2

Reviewing Powers

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1. Management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of
operations;

2. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

3. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

4. The appointment, removal, and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor
shall be subject to review by the audit committee; and

5. Statement of deviations:

(i) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including a report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of the Listing Regulations;
and

(ii) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the
document/prospectus/notice in terms of the Listing Regulations.

6. Review the financial statements, in particular, the investments made by any
unlisted subsidiary.

Meetings, attendance, and Composition of Audit Committee

During the year under review, Audit Committee met 6 times i.e, on May 16, 2022,
September 24, 2022, November 07, 2022, December 08, 2022, February 03, 2023 and
March 22, 2023. The details of attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
meetings held during the year are given below:

Sr. Name of Members Category No. of Meetings
No. Held during Attended
the tenure i
1. | Mrn Chikmagalur | Independent Director 6 6
Kalasheety Gopal
(Chairman)
2. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director 6 6
3. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director 6 6

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to recommend the
recruitments of MDs, WTDs, Independent Directors, and KMPs, as & when applicable to
the Company and to do all the acts pursuant to provisions of Section 178 as per the
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Companies Act, 2013. The Composition and terms of reference of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

Terms of Reference:

The following revised terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
were adopted by the Board at its meeting held on September 24, 2022:

L.

Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, and
independence of a director and recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel, and other employees;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy,
should ensure that:

i. thelevel and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

ii. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and
iii. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel, and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;
For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person
recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have
the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable
candidates, the Committee may:

i. use the services of external agencies, if required;

ii. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

iii. consider the time commitments of the candidates

Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the performance of the independent
directors and the Board:

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

ldentifying persons who qualify to become directors or who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the
Board their appointment and removal, and carrying out evaluations of every
director’s performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried
out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance;
Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;
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7. Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other
applicable law, as and when amended from time to time;

8. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation
matters;

9. Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent
director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent
directors;

10. Determining the company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive
directors including pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining
remuneration packages of such directors;

11. Determining compensation levels payable to the senior management personnel and
other staff (as deemed necessary), which shall be market-related, usually consisting
of a fixed and variable component;

12. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of
the then current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

13. Performing such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation
committee under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended;

14. Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, by an
employee of any applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

(i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, as amended; or

(ii) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair
Trade Practices relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, as amended.

15. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or
specified/provided under the Companies Act, the Listing Regulations or by any other
regulatory authority; and

16. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management and other staff, as deemed necessary.

Meetings, attendance, and Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3 times
i.e, on May 16, 2022; June 25, 2022, and September 24, 2022. The details of attendance of
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee members at the meetings held during the
year are given below:

Sr. Name of Members Category No. of Meetings
No. Held during | Attended
the tenure

1. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director 3 3
[Chairman)

2. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety | Independent Director 3 3
Gopal

3. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director 3 3
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Performance Evaluation:

The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance as well as that of
its Committees and Individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The
exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various
aspects of the Board’s functioning.

BILITY COMMITTEE:

The Board has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to
formulate CSR policy, review and recommend to the Board amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the CSR activities. The Composition and terms of reference of the CSR
Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 135 of the Act read with rules made
thereunder.

Terms of Reference:

The following revised terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee were adopted by the Board at its meeting held on September 24, 2022:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors, the CSR Policy, indicating the
CSR activities to be undertaken as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended;

2. formulate and recommend an annual action plan in pursuance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which shall list the projects or programmes undertaken,
manner of execution of such projects, modalities of utilisation of funds, monitoring
and reporting mechanism for the projects;

3. identify corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social
responsibility policy programmes;

4. delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise
proper execution of all delegated responsibilities;

5. review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility
programmes and issuing necessary directions as required for proper implementation
and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes;

6. Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities, at least

two per cent. of the average net profits of the company made during the three

immediately preceding financial years or where the company has not completed the
period of three financial years since its incorporation, during such immediately
preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy;

To monitor the CSR Policy and its implementation by the Company from time to time;

To perform such other functions or responsibilities and exercise such other powers

as may be conferred upon the CSR Committee in terms of the provisions of Section

135 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended and the rules framed thereunder.

o~



Meetings, attendance, and Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee:

During the year under review, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 times
i.e., on May 16, 2022, and January 18, 2023. The details of attendance of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee members at the meetings held during the year are given
below:

Sr. Name of Members Category No. of Meetings
No. Held during | Attended
the tenure

1. | Mr. Maheswar  Sahu | Non-Executive Director 2 2
(Chairman)

2. | Mr.Vinod Jain! Non-Executive Director 1 1

3. | Mr Chikmagalur | Independent Director 2 2
Kalasheety Gopal

4. Mrs. Geeta Goradia? Independent Director 1 1

5. | Mr. Amitabha Banerjee? Non-Executive Director 1 0

1. Mr. Vinod Jain ceased to be member w.e.f. July 13, 2022.
Z. Mrs. Geeta Goradia appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. July 22, 2022.
3. Mr. Amitabha Banerjee appointed as a member of Committee w.e.l. September 24, 2022,

The CSR policy is available on the Company's website www.irmenergy.com as required
under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Board has constituted the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board
pursuant to the resolution of the Board dated September 24, 2022, for redressing the
shareholder/investor complaints and grievances, as per the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition and terms of reference of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation
20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Terms of Reference:

The following terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were
adopted by the Board at its meeting held on September 24, 2022:

1. Consider and resolve grievances of security holders of the Company, including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares non-receipt of share
certificates and review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and
debentures, dematerialisation and re-materialisation of shares, non-receipt of
balance sheet, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue
of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.;



8.
9.
10.
11.
12,

13.
14.

15.

16.
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Review of measures taken for the effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of
various services being rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;
Considering and specifically looking into various aspects of interest of shareholders,
debenture holders and other security holders;

Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or
transmission of shares, debentures or any other securities;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing
the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants,/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company;
Formulation of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy
disposal of various requests received from shareholders from time to time;

To approve, register, refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other
securities and debentures, dematerialization of shares and re-materialization of
shares, split, and issue of duplicate/consolidated share certificates, compliance with
all the requirements related to shares, debentures, and other securities from time to
time;

To sub-divide, consolidate, and or replace any share or other securities certificate(s)
of the Company;

Allotment and listing of shares;

To authorize affixation of the common seal of the Company;

To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu of the original
share/security(ies) certificate(s) of the Company;

To approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death
of the sole/any joint shareholder;

To dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and
grievances;

Carrying out any other functions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and/or equity
listing agreements (if applicable), as and when amended from time to time; and

To further delegate all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s),
representative(s), consultant(s), professional(s), or agent(s).

Meetings, attendance, and Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

During the year under review, no meeting of the Committee was held. The details of the
composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are given below:

Sr. Name of Members Category
No.

1. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu (Chairman) Non-Executive Director
2. | Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Gopal Independent Director

3. | Mrs. Geeta Goradia Independent Director

4. | Mr. Amitabha Banerjee Non-Executive Director
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Ms. Shikha Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company acts as a
Secretary to the Committee.

Nature of Complaints and Redressal Status

During the financial year, there was no investor complaint pending or unattended.
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Board has also constituted a Risk Management Committee of the Board voluntarily
on September 24, 2022, to frame, implement and actively monitor and review the risk
management plan and ensure its effectiveness.

Terms of Reference:

The following terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee were adopted by the
Board at its meeting held on September 24, 2022:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

a) Aframework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the
listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability
(particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk
as may be determined by the Committee.

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of
identified risks.

¢) Business continuity plan.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to
monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years,
including by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its
discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee;

(7) To approve major decisions affecting the risk profile or exposure and give
appropriate directions.

Meetings, attendance, and Composition of Risk Management Committee:
During the year under review, Risk Management Committee met once i.e., on March 22,

2023. The details of attendance of the Risk Management Committee members at the
meetings held during the year are given below:
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Sr. Name of Members Category No. of Meetings
No. Held during Attended
the tenure

1. | Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak | Independent Director 1 1
(Chairman)

2. | Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director

3. | Mrn Chikmagalur | Independent Director 1
Kalasheety Gopal

4. | Mr. Maheswar Sahu Mon-Executive Director 1 1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
tion Polic

The Company has formulated and adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder. This Policy is available on the website of the Company i.e,, www.irmenergy.com.

ils of Remun i -Executive Direc

- Sitting Fees
The Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Independent Director are entitled to sitting
fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof. Sitting
fees paid to these Directors are within the prescribed limits under the Act, and as
determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.

- Commission
The Shareholders at Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on November 16, 2022, approved
the payment of commission @1% of the net profits of the Company to Mr. Maheswar Sahu,
Chairman and Non-Executive Director of the Company for FY 2022-23.

- Details of Remuneration paid to Directors during the FY 2022-23 are given below:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Sr. No. Directors Sitting Fees Commission Total
Non-Executive Director
i Mr. Maheswar Sahu 13.20 151.02 164.22
2. Mr. Amitabha Banerjee 0.80 - 0.80
3 Mr. Badri Narayan Mahapatra 5.60 - 5.60
Non-Executive Independent Director
4, Mr. Chikmagalur Kalasheety Gopal 11.20 - 11.20
5. Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari 10.00 - 10.00
b. Mrs. Geeta Goradia 5.20 - 5.20
s Mr. Rabindra Nath Nayak 2.80 - 2.80
Notes-

1. Nositting fee was paid to Dr. Rajiv | Modi, Non-Executive Director, during the financial year 2022-
23.
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2. No sitting fee was paid to Mr. Amitabha Banerjee, Non-Executive Director, for attending the
meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees except for the IPO Committee during the
financial year 2022-23.

3. Except for the sitting fees to the Non-executive Directors and commission to the Non-Executive
Chairman, there was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Company and any of
its directors.

4. The Company has not granted any stock options to any of its Non-Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Independent Directors.

5. There is no notice period and provision for payment of severance fees.

During the year under review, none of the Directors hold equity shares of the Company
except for Mr. Maheswar Sahu, Chairman and Non-Executive Director of the Company, who
holds 1,40,718 Equity Shares of the Company.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
A) Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Details of date, time and location of Annual General Meetings held during previous three
years and special resolutions passed thereat are as follows:

Financial Date Time Location Special Resolution
Year Passed
2021-22 | August 23,2022 | 11:00 | 4% Floor, Block 8, |1.Re-appointment of Mr.
AM | Magnet Corporate | Chikmagalur
Park, Nr. Sola Bridge, | Kalasheety Gopal as an
o G. Highway, | Independent Director
Ahmedabad 380054 of the Company for the
second term of five
consecutive years
2020-21 | September 24,| 11:30 | 4% Floor, Block 8, | None
2021 AM Magnet  Corporate
Park, Nr. Sola Bridge,
S. G. Highway,
Ahmedabad 380054
2019-20" | September 19, | 05:30 | Through Video [1. Extension of
2020 PM | Conference (VC)/ | redemption of period of
Other Audio-Visual | 10% Redeemable
Means (OAVM) Preference Shares
allotted on March 03,
2017

* In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, ("MCA") General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated
April 8, 2020, 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, respectively, ("the MCA
Circulars”) the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") was held without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue and Members attended and participate in the AGM through VC/0AVM.
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B) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - NA

C) Whether any resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot -
No resolution is proposed for approval of the members by way of Postal Ballot as on the
date of this report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Audited Annual Financial Statements, Consolidated
Financial Statements, Board's Report and other important information is circulated to the
Members and others entitled thereto. The Annual Report for Financial Year 2022-23 will be

available on the website of the Company at https://www.irmenergy.com/.

All information that are required to be disseminated by the Company in terms of SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015, are uploaded on the website of the Company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A. Company Registration Details
The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) is U40100G]J2015PLC085213.

B. Annual General Meeting

Date July 31, 2023
Venue Through Video Conference/ Other Audio Visual Means
Time 11:00 AM IST

C. Financial Year: April to March

D. Dividend Payment Date
The Company has fixed June 02, 2023 as the ‘Record Date’ for the final dividend. If
approved by the shareholders at the AGM, the date of payment of the dividend would be

within 30 days from the date of the AGM.

E. Listing Details
As on March 31, 2023, none of the securities of the Company are listed on any stock
exchanges. However, the Company had filed a Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with
the SEBI and obtained its approval for Initial Public Offer (IPO).

F. Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083
Tel: +91 22 4918 6000

Website: wwwlinkintime.co.in



G. Share Transfer System
Share Transfer requests, if any, are processed in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

H. Distribution of Shareholding
Equity Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2023:

Category Category of No. of No. of fully paid-up |Percentage
Shareholders Shareholders| Equity Shares held (%)
(A) Promoter and Promoter 2 2,0558,773 67.94
Group
(B) Public 9 97,00,904 31.06
(€) Non-Promoter - Non- - .
Public
(C1) Shares underlying - - 5
depository receipts
(C2) Shares Held by Employee - &
Trust .
Total (A+B+C) 11 3,02,59,677 100

I. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity
All the equity shares and preference shares of the Company are held in demat form.

J. Outstanding GDR/ADR/ warrants/ any convertible instruments
The Company has not issued any GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments in
the past and hence, as on March 31, 2023, the Company does not have any outstanding
GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

K. Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging
We are indirectly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, primarily with respect to the USD as the purchase prices of gas are typically
designated in USD. The Company has a robust framework in place to protect the
Company’s interests from risks arising out of market volatility. The Risk Management
Committee, based on market intelligence and continuous monitoring, advises the
Management on appropriate strategy to deal with such market volatility.

L. Plant Location
1. City Gas Station and Mother Station:

a. Survey No. 527, Jagana Village, Palanpur Taluka, Banaskantha District, Gujarat-

385001

b. Plot A-8, Focal Point Mandi Gobindgarh, Amloh Tehsil, Fatehgarh Sahib District,

Punjab- 147301

¢. Survey No. 254/P2/P2, Judvadali Village, Una Taluka, Gir Somnath District,

Gujarat- 362560



2. LCNG Station
a. Survey No- 560/p, Veraval-Talala Cross roads, Veraval Bypass, Veraval, Gir-

Somnath District, Gujarat -362265

M. Address for correspondence
Ms. Shikha Jain
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

IRM Energy Limited

4th Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Nr. Sola Bridge, 5. G. Highway,

Ahmedabad 380054 Gujarat

Tel: +91 7949031500

E-mail: investorrelations@irmenergy.com

N. Credit Rating
Rating Agency Rating Outlook
CRISIL Ratings Limited A+ Stable
India Ratings and Research A+ Stable
Private Limited

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. There was no materially significant transaction with the related parties during the
financial year that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company.
Necessary disclosures as required under the Accounting Standards have been made in
the Financial Statements. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Policy
on materiality and dealing with Related Party Transactions on September 24, 2022, and
the same is available on the website of the Company at https://www.irmenergy.com/.

b. As the Company is not listed, there was no non-compliance on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years.

¢. The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established a necessary Vigil
Mechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns about any unethical
behaviour. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
The said policy has also been disclosed on the website of the Company -
https://www.irmenergy.com/.

d. The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of Listing
Regulations, to the extent applicable.

e. Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiary, on a consolidated basis,
to the statutory auditor - M/s Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, are given
below:
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(Amount in Lakhs)

' Payment to Statutory Auditor FY 2022-23
Audit Fees - Statutory and Tax (incl GST) 17.10
Out of pocket expense (Certification and other 42.00

reimbursements included in Legal and Professional
Charges and IPO Expenses (incl GST)
Total 59.10

f. The disclosure regarding the complaints of sexual harassment is given in the Director's
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

g. The details of loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
Directors are interested, forms part of notes to the financial statements.

h. A policy for determining Material Subsidiaries has been formulated in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Regulations. This policy has been uploaded on the
website of the Company - https://www.irmenergy.com/

i. The Company has also adopted the discretionary requirement as provided in the Listing
Regulations of Reporting of the internal auditor of the Company directly to the Audit
Committee.

EQUITY SHARES IN THE SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

The provision of Schedule V read with Schedule VI, Regulation 34(3), 53(f) and 39(4) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations are not applicable.



MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IRM Energy Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31" March 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income}, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Other Relevant Information contained
therein, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard. T




MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in saction 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial stateme nts
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
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adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of acco unting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company
to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggre zate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Qrder, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e}

gl

h)

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its financial statement.

ii. ~ The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standard, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term derivative contracts.

iii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the holding, subsidiary and joint control entities.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities {”Inte rmednanes ), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or r::therwrse ol mgrmediary shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations given under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v.  The dividend declared and paid during the year by the company is in compliance with
section 123 of the Act.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to company
which are incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under clause(g) of rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 (as amended), is not applicable for
the financial year ended 31, 2023.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

Membership No.:128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQ)8939
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“Annexure — A" referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
IRM Energy Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

1. (a) i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particular of Intangible
Assets.

{b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,
In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed
/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land
that have been taken on lease and disclosed under property, plant and equipment in the
financial statements, the lease agreements are duly executed in the name of the
Company, where the Company is lessee in the agreement.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, the company has not revalued any of its property, plant
and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or
are pending against the Company as at 31* March, 2023 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016).and rules
made thereunder.

2. (a)  The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and coverage and procedure for
such verification is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its business. Mo discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account. 20 S
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(b)

As Disclosed in note 16 (c) to the standalone financial statements, the quarterly
statements filed by the company are materially in agreement with the books of account

of the Company, except detailed as hereunder:

(Amt in Million)

Quarter Particular Value as | Value as | Amount Reason for
Ended per Books | per of Discrepancy
of quarterly | Difference
Account statement
June 2022 | Inventory 14.47 13.67 0.80 | - Difference is on
Trade 347.29 355.71 (8.42) | account of
Receivable accounting entry
Trade 380.44 255.83 124.61 | passed
Payable subsequently to
Net Difference 116.98 | filling of stock
September | Inventory 15.25 15.25 - | statement
2022 Trade 477.05 468.51 8.54
Receivable
Trade 256.84 240.18 16.66
Payable
Net Difference 25.20
December | Inventory 17.90 17.90 -
2022 Trade 416.28 425.17 (8.89)
Receivable
Trade 223.28 23.08 140.19
Payable
Met Difference 131.30
March Inventory 19.29 19.29 -
2023 Trade 366.32 366.32 -
Receivable
Trade 264.82 257.52 7.30
Payable
Net Difference 7.30

(a) During the year the company has made investments and also provided loans or advances
in the nature of loans and also provided guarantee to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships and other parties details are as follows:

(Amount in Million)

Particular Loans | Guarantees
A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year

- Joint Venture - 200.00
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

- Joint Venture 74.90 675.60

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
the grant of the above-mentioned loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company's interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated and repayment of principal is not yet due.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of books of accounts, there is no overdue loans for more than 90 days at the
balance sheet date.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the loans or advances
in the nature of loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

(f)  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment to Promoters and related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

6.  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

7 (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value added Tax, Cess
and any other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.
Moreover, as at March 31, 2023, there are no such undisputed dues payable for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which has not been deposited

as on account of any dispute, are as follows:

1961 Interast

Name of the Name of dues Amount Period to Forum where dispute
Statue (Rs. In which the is pending
million) amount
relates
Income Tax Act, Income Tax and 0.05 | AY.2018-19 | Income Tax Officer

8. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

9. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

10. (a)

(b)

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or due to
debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company is not declared as willful defaulter by
any bank of financial institution or other landers.

According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans are applied for the
purpose for which the loans are obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, we report that the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for the long-term purpose

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, company has not raised any loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has made private placement of shares during the year under audit and the
company has complied with the provisions of the section 42 of the companies Act, 2013

and the funds raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.
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11:

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.
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(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standard.

(a) According to information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the act
under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable
to the company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(c} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(d) Based on the information and explanation provided by the management of the company,
the group does not have any CICs, which are part of the group. Ar.ccrdmgly, the reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the campan =

7" Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

17.  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year;

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

12.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

20.  There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as at the end of the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

21.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of Standalone
Financial. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 106625W
Vo

2t

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

¥ -."-:'r"ilr'—l,':'f'
Membership No.: 128670 sl ALV
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 31/05/2023
UDIN: 23128670BGWGQ)8939
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report — March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRM Energy Limited (“the
company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls )

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

As per Section 143(3)(i) our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment
of the material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringcigde
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that: '

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 106625W
ol

-

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQIES39
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
IUnies offwrwiie shetad o omounts o in Miton indon Rupss:|

As ot Morch 31, | As of March 31,
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{H) Oiher incncial axeels &8 1 10.04 182.4%
gl Ciher non-cument cuals H 40413 8831
h) income Tox Asset [MNed) 4226 -
548528 1.971.74
Cumrent assebs
a) inveniodes -1 1929 17.1%
bj Fincncial claets
fil Investmarnts 58 4328 102.78
[F} Trodae receiables 7 /22 27104
[® Caosh and cath equivalenis 104 218 01,49
[i¥) Bonk balonces ciher fhan (&) obove s} TaEDE 405,57
[v] Loons - -
|wi] Other financiol ossets 11 3r.ea 2575
=) Olher curent assefs iz 2‘3_1_&. 4417
2.255.07 1,414.05
Tabal Assets 772035 540597
EQUITY AND LLABILITIES
Equity
] Ecpsty shote copifal 13 30260 23370
Bl Oifver gquity 14 295301 }mu,g_
Talal equity 325541 229517
Liobililies

Hon-cwrent labliies
o] Financial Lisbilfies

[} Bomowings 154 2H21.96 1,847 .40
B Leose Liobites 150N a2
(@) Trode poyobies . ¥
[iv] Ciher financial kablities 17 IFIT0 195.24
) Proviions %Y 13.72 a5
] Delemed tox fobitie [Mad) 20 18522 147.12
344531 2.377.52
Current Faobities
o] Finoncial Lokl
Ml Boroweings 158 21637 158.32
[ Lemse Liobities 8.54 B
[A} Trode payobles &
- foldl outsionding dues of micro enterprises and small enlenpises 1.85 243
- felol cutstonding dues of crediiors ofher thon micro enferprises 068 248.50
end small enterprises
] Oiher fnoncial ketSities 17 451,45 21905
b | Proviions 188 0.55 0.41
c] Other cument kablities % 52 &40
d] Cument fax Eabilfies [MNed) - B4 95
1.019,43 783.31
Tobad Equity and Liabilifies 7.720.35 5.405.59
e accompanying noles 1o he finonciol sholemants
s prer our report of v dote
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behol of the Boond
Chartered Acceuribants
Frm Reghtrafion Mo 106625W &\
N
-.-a{ bt
| Harsh kejriwal (r‘m Karan Kaushal |
Parl Cholrman
Mambanhin Number : 128570 DaO0034051

Anmadobod, Dabted © 3141 May, 2003 ¥ W
(LN
arshal

Ahrmadabod. Daled : st Moy, 2003




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STAMDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENMDED MARCH 31, 2023
|Unfass ofhenwite siabed, all omounls cea in Mision Indian Rupeses)
For the year For the year
Farficulars Note No.| ending March | ending March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Income @
Revenue from Operafions i | 10.391.35 5,441 .43
Other income 2 5964 30.50
Tatal Income 10.450.9% 5.491.93
EXPEMSES :
Purchayes of slock-in-trode of natural gos 23 7.I85.27 249227
Changes in iInveniones of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Slock-in-Traode 24 2.50 17.24)
Excise Duty on Sole of Compressed Notural Gas 590.47 387 %8
Employee Benefils Expense 25 0,83 71.58
Finonce Cosls 24 2¥%03 220.75
Depraciation and Amorlisation expense 7 208.74 150,41
Diher Experses i FB9.52 £53.27
Total Expenses 7.704.58 3,768.30
Profit before Tax Fa4.41 153,43
Tox Expense
- Carporate Tox 29 141.2% 334,50
- Defered Tox % 3832 53.54
Total Tax Expense 178,41 38804
PFrofit for the year 544,80 1,135.5%
Other Comprehensive income
1i. Itermns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeoswements of the defined benefit asset {0.84) 0.15
b. Income lox related bo this ilems 0.2 i
{0.53) 0.15
Tolal comprechensive income 56417 1,135.74
Earnings Per Shore (Foce Value of Rs. 10 each)| 34
Baosic) 18.72 38.92
Dauled) 18.72 38.92
See ooccompanying noles lo the finoncial siatlements
As per our repord of even date
For Mukesh M Shoh & Co. For and an behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
|Frm Ragistrafion Mo: 106625W
g e f?ﬂ/\ W i
Harsh¥efriwal (s:m Karan Kaushal|
Poriner Chdwman CEQ
Membership Number : 1285670 DIM00034051
Aahmedobod. Dated @ 313 May, 2023 N
A.“. i - Eiﬁ _,"" {
Harshat Anjaria Shikha Jain|
CFO Company Secrefary]’,

Ahmedobad. Dated : 31st May, 2073




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
[Unilads ofhadwite idcled, all omounts one in Milion Indicn Rupaei) |
For the year | For the year
Fariculars ending Mare | anding March
a1, 2023 31, 2022
A, Coth Fow fram operaling activities
|Het profit before fax ond extroordinary ibems Td44.41 1.523.63
Adjusiment for:
Inferest income [56.85) (2%.42)
Employee Benefi! Bpente 0.04 -
Finance Cosls 29.03 22077
Fair wolue measwemen] of finoncial assels {0.52) {1.08)
Remesurement of defined benefils 0.53) -
Provigson lor Epense (nel) 177,25 48.28
Profit on sole of ol {0.18}| -
Deprecialion and Amodisalion axpense 208.96 150.38
Cperating profit beiore working copilol chonges 1,301.52 1,912.58
nerease)/Decrease in Ofher Assels [850.%3) [370.12)
(Increase)fDecrease in Inventories [2.14] 7.11]
{Iincreasel/Decrease in Trode Receivable {159.08) [115.26)
Increasef|Decrecsa] in Trode Poyables 33920 14.11
Increose/|Decreosa] in Anomncial Liobilikes 32082 130.08
increase/|Decrease] in Olher Liobilifies [ 202.03) {57.500
Cosh genavated from operalion T47.36 1,504.76
Direci toxes [poid)/Refund [280.41) (218.37)
Cosh flow before exdroondinary iterms 46595 1,786,39
Met cash from operaling activilies la] 466.95 1.284,39
B. Cash flow from investing ocfivifies
Inleres Income 47,04 17.31
Irwesimend in bMutual Funds [730.32) [138.75)
Sale of Mutual Funds »037 -
Irvesiment in Subsidiary 10.35) g
Loons (given|frepaid . [#7.42
[Purchose]fsale of Fxed Assels [incl. capilal work in progress) {i.ﬂ.‘a.lﬁ-[ [#04.53)
Net cash used in investing octivities [ [&1] ]&Dl &,42) [1.103.39)
Proceeds from equity shores ssued (incl Securiies Premium) 412,63 15.73
Proceads from Banks Bomowings Li52.72 163.20
Repayment lowards Bank Bomowings {108.69] 162.51
Change in Shod Term Bomowing [49.98) 47.98
Finance Costs 192.24) (193.53]
Lease cost [21.41) [LLE:|
Slamp duly onissue of shores [1.67) -
Dividend [14.68) {34.59)
et cosh from financing aclivilies {e) 1.176.68 150.9%
|Het increase f [decrease] in cash ond cosh equivolents [a+b+c) [372.78) 333.9%
Cash and cash equivalents — opening bolonce 59149 257.50
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 21871 £91.4%
Reconciliofion of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Cash ond cash equivalents at the end of ihe yeor comprises
|} Bclance with banks
Babonce in Curent Accounts 218.04 5147
[b) Cash on hand 0.65 0.32
218.7 581.4%
|Hebes:
[i] The: cash Flow sialement reflects the cash fiows perigining to conlinuing operalions.
[ii} The: cash Flow stalerment hos been prepared under The TIndirect Melhod o set oul in IND AS - 7 Cosh Flaw Stalement™
(i} Disclosure of chonges in fobiffies aising from finoncing acfivities, including bath chonges arising from cosh flows and non-
cash Changes
Ser accompanying nodes fo the finoncial statements
A per our report of sven dote
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behall of the Boord
Charfered Accountants
Registration Mo: mﬁ?w:-.' ge*h I: ) { A
H M. Sahu Earan Kaushal|
Poriner Chairmivan CEOQ
Membership Mumber : 128670 DiN:00034051 %
Ahmedabaod, Daled : 31t May, 2023 - L)
rshal kha Jain
Compaony Secretary
Ahmedabod, Doled : 31st May, 2033




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
STANDALOMNE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(2 Equity Share Caplal
[niess offmnsive sloted, o omounts are in Mion Indion Bupeei)
Parlicvlars Ho. of Shores Amaunl
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each, lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up:
As af March 31, 2021 2E7.99.471 28959
Add: bswred dwing the pedod babween 158 Apdl, 2021 to 3130 March, 2022 3.70.204 370
Asal March 31, 2022 293.69.877 Z¥AT0
Add: lsued during the perod between 15t Apdl, 202210 3151 March, 2023 B.90.000 B.50
As al March 31, 2023 3,02.59 477 30240
(b] Other equity
[Umiess ofnenwise Slaled, o omounts o in Milion Indion Bupsset)
bl ol Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
P——— of compound EUTy 1
financial Ganstal | Securies Share Profit and |Remeasureme| Instruments atal
ingtruments reserve | Premium | APPEcaficn Lass nof defined | through other
Money account | benel® plons | comprehensive
Balance o3 of 31 March 2021 211.05 E 42.25 . 634,05 {[0L6T) - 88848
Prafil tar the year pefod 2021-22 - - - 1.135.80 . - 113550
Equity Component of Preference Shares - - . = .
Remeaurements of the defined banafil csal . B B i 015 - 018
(rt of fex) 3
Share Appicalion Money . = = -
Received)|Relundead)
Dividend Dhbibufion Tax . - - . - E -
Coponate Dividend = = - [35.00] i = {35.00)
Tronsaclion Cost on bsue of shares - - - - - x 2
| Sivore Presméum : - 12.03 - - = 1203
Balance ai al 31 March 3022 211.08 54.28 1,734.45 {mh - 2.000.46
Profil lor ihe yeor period 2022-23 - - " 564.79 - - 54479
Equity Companan! ol Praléreance Shares - - - - = - -
Remeosuremnents of ihe defined benalil asel
fnet of bax) x ? 5 3 FE : 043
Shore Applicalion Money .
Received/[Retunded) o - - =
Dividand Distribution Tax = - = = - = =
Corporale Dividend . : - [14.58) o - [14.68)
Transochon Cost on iue of shanes - . (1467} . - {1.67)
Share Pramium - 40073 & = - 403.73
Balance as of 31 March, 2023 211.08 - A54.34 = 228577 [1.15) 2.953.0

Far Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Finrn ralion Mot IN*S%

Harsh Kejiwal
Pariner

Membarship Murnber @ 128470
Ahmedabad, Doted : 31t May, 2023

For and on behall of the Board

Ahmedobad, Dated © 315 May. 2023




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Limited (formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated
on 01¢ December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or carry out the
business of storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or
incidental fo the laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas
Distribufion Metworks. The Company was converted info Public Company
consequent fo which a fresh cerfificate of incorporation dated 23 March, 2022 was
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad. The Company is
currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha Distiict in the Siate of Gujarat,
Fatehgarh Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in
the State of Gujarat as per the authorisafion granted by Petroleum & Natural Gas
Regulatory Board (PNGRB). The Company was awarded the auth orisation for City Gas
Distribution in the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappadlli Districts in the
State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022.

The registered office of the Company is located at 4 Floor, Block B, Magnet
Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, 5.G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 380054, Gujarat.

2. Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended
from time to time. The significant accounting policies that are used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below:

3. Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

3.2 Historical cost convention

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost
convention & on an accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at
fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

» Financial assets & financial liabilifies measured inificlly at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial Instruments);
« Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefits.




3.3 Current vs Non-Current Classification

34

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it safisfies any of the following

conditions:

a. The assel/liability is expected to be redlised/ settled in the Company's normal
operafing cycle;

b. The asset is intended for sale or consumption;
c. The asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

d. The assetfliability is expected to be realised/setiled within twelve months after
the reporiing period.

e. The asset is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period;

f. In case of liability, the Company does not have unconditional right to defer the
Settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the
Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is
based on the nature of services and time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents

Use of estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS
requires the use of certain critical accounfing estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounfing policies. -The management believes that the estimates
used in preparafion of the financial staternents are prudent and reasonable The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or area where
assumptions & estimates are significant to these Standalone Financial Statements
are disclosed below.

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with the
Accounting Standards generally accepted in India requires, the management
to make estimates & assumpfions that affect the reported amounts of assets &
liabilities & disclosure of contingent liabilities as the date of the Standalone
Financial Statements & reported amounts of revenues & expenses for the year.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision fo accounting
esfimates is recognised prospectively in current & fulure periods.

When preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management undertakes
a number of judgments’, estimates & assumpfions about the recognition &
measurement of assets, liabilities, income & expenses. In the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies, the following judgments have been made
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial information. Judgements are based on




(ii)

(il

{iv]

(vi)

(wii)

(i)

(ix)

Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expecied o be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Property, plant & eguipment: Property, plant & equipment represent

a significant proporfion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life & the
expected residual value at the end of ifs life. Management reviews
the residual values, useful lives & methods of depreciation of
property, plant & equipment at each reporting period end & any
revision to these is recognised prospectively in curent & future
periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anficipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as changes in technology.

Emplovee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making
judgments about the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary
increase, etc. Which significanily affect the working of the present
value of future liabilities on account of employee benefits by way of
defined benefit plans.

Impairment of assets & investments: Significant judgment is involved

in determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments,
Property, Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine its value in use
to assess whether there is any impairment in its carrying amount as
reflected in the financials.

Deferred Tax; Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable
profits will be available while recognising defered tax assets.

Eecognition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case
of customers where meter reading dates for billing is not matching
with reporting date, the gas sales between last meter reading date
& reporting date has been accrued by the company based on past
average sales. The actual sales revenue may vary compared fo
accrued unbilled revenue so included in Sale of naiural gas &
classified under current financial assets.

Recognition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an oulflow of resources & on past experience &
circumstances known at the balance sheet date, The actuagl cutflow
of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so
provided & included as liability.

Provision on receivables/advances : The Company has a defined

policy for provision of receivables whn:h is based on the ageing of
receivables. The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals.

Provision for Inventory including Capital Inventory: The Company has
a defined policy for provision of slow and non-moving inventory
based on the ageing of inventory. The Co views the policy
af regular intervals,




3.5 Properly, Plant & Equipment

(i) Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment other than land are stated at cost of
acquisiion / construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly
attributable & ascertainable, to completing the project which includes
freight, duties & taxes (fo the extent credit is not available) ,other
incidental expenses relating fo acquisition and installation and pre-
operative expenses. These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant
& machinery, cost of laying of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning &
testing charge, detailed engineering & inferest on borowings
attributable to acquisifion of such assets. The gas distribution networks
are treated as commissioned when supply of gas commences to the
custormer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and
Equipment is added tfo its book value only if it increases the future
economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses incurred towards normal
repairs and maintenance of the existing property, plant and Equipment
(including cost of replacing parts) are charged to profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

Interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of
Property, Flant and Equipment for the period of construction is added
to the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators
where applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they
meet the definition provided under Ind AS 14 subject to materiality as
determined by the management & followed consistently.

(iii) Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which
are yet o be commissioned & capital inventory, which comprises stock
of capital gitems/construction materials at respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & oscerfainable expenditure, incidental &
related to construction incurred during the period of consfruction on a
project, fill it is commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress ([CWIP)
& after commissioning the same is fransferred / allocated to the
respective “Property, Plant and Equipment”.

Further, advances paid fowards the acquisiion of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as
capital advances under other non- curent assets.

(iv) reciation is provi s follow:

* Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis on 1he straight line method
('SLM’) as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Comp




in line with their esfimated useful life , except for the following assets where
depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis over the estimated useful life of
the assefs based on fechnical advice taking into account the nature of the
assef, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condifions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support etc.

The estimated Useful life of Asset is below

Name of Asset Useful life
Building 25 Years
Computer and Laptops 3 Years
P nd Machinery- Pipelines an

hﬁg‘:: r:i:l:i s ery- Pipelines and Last 95 Years
F’Ir:n?i and Machinery- CﬂG Stations 15 Years
Equipments and Installations

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles S Years
Software 5 Years

o The management believes that these useful lives are realistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unameortised depreciable
amount [remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining useful life.

o For the purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concemed.

Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acquired [
disposed-off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the date of addition / disposal.

Depreciation on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition.

Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carying amount. These are included in the statement of profit & loss
under Other Expenses/Income.

The camying amount of assets, including those assets that are not yet
available for use, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, recoverable amount of asset is determined. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss whenever
the carmrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that th i




3.4

3.7

asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been
determined if no impairment loss had been recognised. (Cross Reference
Note Impairment)

i) Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way
(ROW) permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of
developing software for infernal use. The Company capitalises software
as Intangible Asset where it is expected to provide fulure enduring
economic benefits. Cost associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as expenses as & when incumred.

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the period
for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor of payment
is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such ROW charges is
considered as 10 years,

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefiis are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arnising on de-recognition of the intangible asset [calculated as
the difference beitween the net disposal proceeds & the carrying
amount of the intangible asset) is charged to revenue in the income
statement when the intangible asset is derecognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency fransactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of such transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
Balance Sheet. Gain/Loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange
rates on setflement/tfranslation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to
borowing costs, in which case they are capitalised along with the bomrowing
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon fransfer of contral of promised products or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is
measured based on the fransaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted
for discounts and other incentives, if any, as per contracts with the customers.
Revenue also excludes taxes collecied from customers in its capacity as agent.

Sale of MNailural Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the measurability or collectability of the sale consideration. Sales are billed bi-
monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnightly for commercial & non-
commercial customers & fortnightly for industrial customers as the timing of the
fransfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales
agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) is recognized
on sale of gas to consumers from retail outlets.

The amount recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty & exclusive
of Sales Tax /Value Added Tax (VAT). Goods & Service Tax ? Risne
f

=
A &




3.8

3.9

3.10

discounts or quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the last biling cycle to the
Balance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected fowards connection charges from certain domestic
customers are “Mon-Refundable Charges". Accordingly, the same are
recognized asrevenue as an when the Company receives the amount from such
customers.

The amaounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes amount
“refundable” in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a liability under
the head "Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet,

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividends Income from investment is recognised at the time the right fo receive
payment is established.

Borrowing Costs

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to
the date of commissioning. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time (i.e. twelve months or more) to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over
the tenor of respective loan.

(i) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in
which they are incumred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets and investment in
associated

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such
indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing camying amount of each
asset &/ or cash generating unit fo the recoverable amount being higher of the
net selling price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the present value
of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued
at lower of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average
cost method. Where Cost of inventories includes all other costs incumed in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condifion and Net
Redlisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost of completion and esfimated cost necessary to make the
sale. Necessary adjustment for shortage / excess stock is given based on the
available evidence and past experience of the company.




3.11

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc) are
valued at lower of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on moving
weighted average basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises curent tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or
credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounfing
income & taxable income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised
in statement of profit or loss except tax expenses related to items recognised
directly in reserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which
are recognised with the underlying items.

i) The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period's taxable income based on the applicable income taxrate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred fax assets & liabilities
atfributable fo tempaorary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e.
as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1941, as amended from time
fo time. Management periodically evaluates posifions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amountis expected o be paid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for curent income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance fax paid & income tax provision
arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where
the Company is able to & intends to settle the asset & liability on a net
basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between

the tax bases of the assets & liabilities & their camying amounts in
Standolone Financial Statements at the reporting date. Defered tax are
recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences being the
difference between taxable income & accounting income that originate
in one perod & are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods., the camy forward of unused tax losses & the camy forward of
unused tax credits.
Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
& are expected to apply when the related defered income tax asset is
realised or the defered income tax liability is setfled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences & unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current
deferred tax balances relate to t




assets & tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset & intends either to setile on a net basis, or to
redlise the asset & settle the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT) under
the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1941 is recognised as deferred tax to
the exitent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be ulilised. The said asset is
created by way of credit to the statement of profit & loss & shown under
the head defered tax asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date & reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date & are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

3.12 lLeases
The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a initial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the confract involves
the use of an idenfified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and [iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use (ROU) asset and a comesponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less [short-ferm leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arangements includes the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilitfies on
the initicl application date, that s amived based on incremental
borrowing rate on the initial application date. They are Subsequenﬂy
measured at cost less accumulated d /pgg‘:@lgp\nnd impg
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ROU assets are depreciated from the initial applicafion date on a straight-
line basis over the shorfer of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their camying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tesfing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit [CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at ameortized cost at the present
value of the future lease payments on the date of inifial application. The
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a coresponding adjustment o the
related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU
assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
paymenis have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or
operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests
in the head lease and the sublease Consclidatedly. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset
arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is
recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.13 Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expecied to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up fo the end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are setfled. The liabilifies are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i)

Defined niribution Plan:

Conftribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued
in accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory
provident fund authorities [Government administered provident fund
scheme). The Company does not camy any other obligation apart from
the monthly contribution.

The Company's confribution is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.




(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the
end of each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an
actuary appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan
assefs. The Liabilities with regard fo the Graiuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each
balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligafion denominated in INR is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to the
market yields at the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost in calculated by applying the discounting rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligafion & the fair value of plan
assefs. Such costs are included in employee benefit expenses in the
statement of Profit & Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from
experience adjustments & changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the period in which they occur directly in
“other comprehensive income" & are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheet. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligafion as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains & losses on curtailments & non-routine settlements;
s«  Metinterest expense orincome.

[iii) Long Term Employee Benefifs:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected to
be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is
freated as long term employee benefits.

The Company’s liability is actuarially determined by quadlified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

3.14 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intermnal
reporfing provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company
operates in a single segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure
requirements as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” have been disclosed by
the Company under note no 38.




3.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Confingent Assets

3.14

3.7

3.18

3.19

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events & it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required fo settle
the obligafion & inrespect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure
for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligafion that may, but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision/ disclosure is made. Confingent assets are not
recognised in the financial statement.

Provisions & confingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted
to reflect the comect management estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
& item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance
sheet date) occuring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the
Standalone Financial Statements. Material non adjusting events (that are
inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date that represents material change &
commitment affecting the financial posifion are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
[excluding other comprehensive income] for the year atfibutable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
right issue, shares split & reserve share splits [consolidation of shares] that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding. without a comresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for the year
attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise fo a financial asset of one
enfity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward
confracts, cross cumency interest rate swaps, interest rate SWaps, curency
oplions and embedded derivatives in the ha




a. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus transaction
costs attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of
financial assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortized cost or fair value depending on the company’'s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business modelin which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value
of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a period, for
other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs),
and profit margin.

In assessing whether the confractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and inferest, the company considers the contractual tferms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
confractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial Assets at amoriised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect confractual cash flows,
- the confractual terms of the financial asset represents
confractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured af amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is
calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.




Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FvocCl)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are meft:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect confractual cash flows.
- the confractual terms of the financial asset represent
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis o present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income pertaining fo investments in equity
instruments, other than equity investment which are held for frading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equily instruments through other
comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instuments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Company irevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in
equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on inifial recognition. The fransaction costs
directly attibutable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement
of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Conirolled Enfities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are
measured at cost less impairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Financial
Statements.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its camying value of investments caried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than ifs camying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the company's balance sheet) when:




- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligafion to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the company has fransferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has fransferred conftrol of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered info a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all of the rsks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred confrol of the asset, the company
confinues to recognize the fransferred asset to the extent of the
company's confinuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognizes an associated liability. The ftransferred asset and the
associated liakility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Coenfinving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original camrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required fo repay.

On derecognifion of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the camrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in the OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expecied credit losses associated with its
assets camied at amortised cost and FYOCI debt instruments on a
forward-locking basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified
approach as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial
recognifion of the trade receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
equal to the life fime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilifies are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.




All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of amoerfised cost, net of directly athibutable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilifies depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilifies measured at amortised cost

After the inifial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabiliies held for trading and financial liabilifies designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilifies held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in the Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atfributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transfered to
the P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All the other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii.Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates
whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If
the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset
is recognised at fair value,




If the cash flows of the modified asset camried at amorfised cost are not
substantially different, then the meodification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates
the gross camrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount
arising from adjusting the gross camrying amount as a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. If such a modification is camied out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairment losses. In other cases, itis presented as interestincome. The gain
{ loss is recognised in other equity in case of transaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value
(net of fransaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair value and
the fransaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based
on the underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilifies are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial
liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the camying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new
financial liability with medified terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain
{ loss is recognised in other equity in case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company hos computed the Equity component of the Preference
Shares considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further
modified the estimates of future cash flows.

3.20 Fair Value Measurements

These Standalone Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, except certain financial assets & labilifies measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy on financial instruments) as per relevant applicable Ind
AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an ordery fransaction between market parlicipants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liakility, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or ligbility. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

Management applies valuafion techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-
financial assets. This involves developing esfimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on cbservable data as far as possible but this is not always available.
In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair
values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's
length fransaction at the reporting date

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that

market pcrhmpun’rs wcruld use when pnr:ung pe=aised. or Ilc:btllh,r ass that
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3.21

of a noninancial asset takes info account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefils by using the asset in ifs highest & best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest &
best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances & for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets & liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

* level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets & liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether iransfers have occured
between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole] at
the end of each reporting period.

The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless
otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. Items reflecting as 0.00
denotes value less than Rs. 50,000.




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N 4.1
Propedy, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Gross Block
(Uniles olherwiie shaled, of omounts ofe in Milicn Indian Rupees)
Freehold Leasehold Plant and | Computers | Fumitures & Office
FEA AN Land land i Machinery | ond _h.u_nuu Fiatures vete Equipments o
Bolance as on March 31, 2021 17.58 144.35 2.322.82 7.32 15.90 2.72 24.1% 2,534.87
Addition 4.56 - ] &34.31 736 2.59 17.96 4,10 478,18
DisposalfAdjustments/ Transfer - - - 5 = - = - =
Balance as on March 31, 2022 22.14 151.64 2,957.13 14.48 18.50 20.67 28.28 3.213.06
Addition 3760 - 6827 819.71 6.50 1w 254 13,62 #50.03
Disposal/Adjusiments/ Transter : - . {5.05) - - - - {5.05)
Balonce as on March 31, 2023 59.74 - 217.594 37079 2.7 21.88 23.41 41.91 4,158.04
Depreciation and Amarti;
{Unlass olthersise slaled, ol amounis are in Million Indian Rupees)
Freehold Leasehsld Plant and | Computers | Fumnitures & Office
Famevien Land land kg Machinery | and _M...._uﬂu Fixtures Viiicies Equipments Tekl
Balance as on March 31, 2021 - 10,88 203.50 4,3% 2,20 0.13 5.80 226.90
Addition - - 5.63 122.25 193 1.85 1.74 4.80 137.99
Disposal/ Adjustments) Transfer - - = - - - . - -
Bolonce as on March 31, 2022 - - 14.51 325.75 65.31 3.84 1.86 10,60 344.88
Addition - 749 159.41 4,48 2o 4,04 4897 184,40
Disposal/Adjusiments/ Transfer - - {1.39] - - - - {1.39)
Balonce as on March 31, 2023 . - 24,00 483.78 10.78 5.84 550 17.57 547.89
lock
{Unless olhersise slaled, all amounts are in Milllon Indion Rupaes)
Freehold Leasehold Flant Computers | Furnitures &
Posticulone Land land Bulldings ,____.Ma:_”n“ andlaplops | fdures | Vehicles mﬂ..w_”mhna. s
Balance g3 on March 31, 2022 2214 - 135,15 2.431.38 8.34 14,45 1881 17.48 284818
Balance gs gn March 31, 2023 59.74 173.94 3.288.02 10,39 15.04 17.71 24.33 1410015
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING MOTES TO STANDALONE INANCIAL STATEMENTS
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IRM Energy Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), its Subsidiary and its Joint Controlled entities
(Subsidiary, Joint Controlled Entity together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended on that date, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial staterments”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, of Consolidated profit,
Consolidated changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s manage ment and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consclidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its are also
respansible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion: The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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b) Obtainan understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its
Joint Controlled entity companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7 Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one jointly controlled entity, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 783.97 million as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 1055.72 million and
net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 128.60 million for the year ended on that date. The consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 62.98 Million for the year ended
March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one Joint
controlled entity, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these jointly Controlled entity, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly Controlled
entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors on the Consolidated financial statements and other financial information of the Joint
Controlled entity, we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so fer it appears from our examination of
those books and the report of other auditor.

c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act:
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and reports of the statutory auditors of the subsidiary and its Joint Controlled Entity
incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory auditors of its Joint Controlled entity
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the group companies is disqualified
as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A" which is based on the auditors report of the holding company, its subsidiary and
joint control entities.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, based on the auditcrs report of
the holding company, its subsidiary and joint control entities in our opinion the remuneration
paid by the Company to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h} 'With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The group, has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
consolidated financial statements.

ii. ~ The Group has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standard, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term derivative contracts.

iii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the group.

v. a) The respective Managements of the Parent, its subsidiaries and its joint
controlled entities which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or any of such
subsidiaries and joint controlled entities to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or
any of such subsidiaries or its joint controlled entities (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
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or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The respective Managements of the Parent its subsidiaries and its joint controlled
entities which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiaries, its joint controlled entities respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have
been received by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries or its joint controlled
entities from any person(s) or entity(ies), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent or any of such subsidiaries and
joint controlled entities shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our
or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the representations under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The dividend declared and paid during the year by the group is in compliance with
section 123 of the Act.

Vi Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) is applicable with effect from April 1, 2023 to company,
its subsidiary and joint controlled entities which are incorporated in India, and
accordingly, reporting under clause(g) of rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 (as amended), is not applicable for the financial year ended 31,
2023,

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7" Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

vii.  Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements are:

Sr. | Name of the Company Nature of | Clause Number of
No Relationship CARO report with
qualification  or
adverse remark

1 IRM Energy Limited Holding Company Clause (ii)(b)
CIN: U40100GJ2015PLCO85213

2 Venuka  Polymers  Private | Joint Controlled | Clause {ii)(b)
Limited Entity

CIN: U25209GJ2019PTC111511

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W g

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQKT513
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“Annexure A" to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the IRM Energy Limited (“the
Holding Company”), its Subsidiary Company and its Joint Controlled entity, (‘Subsidiary and Joint
Controlled entity’ together referred to as the “Group”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023,
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, Joint
Controlled entity incorporated in India, as of the date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary and jointly Controlled entity
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial control based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAl]. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company, its subsidiary company and Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgement, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company
and its Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1. Pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Company, its subsidiary and its Joint Controlled entity companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo.; 106625W
Vo

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31,/05/2023

UDIN: 23128670BGWGQKT513
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and small enlerprises
[v] Dher financial iabiifies 18 45149 21915
b ) Provisons 198 0.55 041
c] Other cumrant Bobilthes bl 2093 al.41
d] Current lax Tab#ifies [Ne) - B4.25
1.01%.48 783.31 |
Tohal Equity and Liabiliies) 7.929.02 5,548,04
Jee accampanying noles to the inancial sialements
REY O\
A per our report of even dale !'_;r
|For Mukesh M Shah & Co. el { For and on behall of the Boord
Charfered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W | Eﬁiﬂ IE Li
Harsh Kejriwal W( M. Sahu Karan Kavshal
Pariner Chakman CEOQ
Membeorship Number : 1285670 DN 00034051 " "
Ahmedobod, Dafed : 31st Moy, 2023 3 %,h"’
i bl #’
Harshal Shikha Jain
CFO Company Sechelary
Ahmedabod, Doted @ 3131 May, 2023




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Uniess ctherwhe soled, ol omounls one in MEkon Indicn Rupea |
Forihe year | Forthe year
Parlculars Mote Mo.| ending March | ending March
3, 1023 N, 2022
Incame ;
Revenue lrom Operalions 2 10.391.35 5.461.43
Oiher Income 23 59.64 30.50 |
Total Income IS 00 |8 AF] 93
EXPEMSES = =
Purchases of stock-in-frade of natural gas 24 TIP5.27 247227
Chonges in inventories of Ainkhed goods, Wotk-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 25 2.50 19.98]
Excise Duly on Sale of Compressed Nalural Gas 50047 3ev 58
|[Employes Banafil Expenie 26 7083 71.58
Finance Cosks & 22903 22075
Depreciolion and Amorisolion expense 28 20898 150,41
Oiher Expendes ¥ FER.S0 45357
Tolal Expenses 9.704.97 3,948.30
|Profit betore Tax J"-HE‘.E 1.523.63
Tax BExqpense -
- Conporale Tax 0 141.29 334,50
- Defered Tox 30 3878 5354 |
|Total Tax Expense 17957 38804 |
Pradid for fhe vear belore thare of profitiflosz) of Joinl Conlrol Enfities 544 45 1,135 5% |
Share of Profil/{loss] of Joint Condrol Entilies 5671 144.69
Profil for the year 631.34 1,280.28
Less: Transfer lo non-conidling interesits [0.109 ¥
Frofit for the vear 43144 1.280.28 |
Oiher Comprahensive income -
I. s thot will not be reclossified lo profil or loss -
0. Remaasurameants of the defined benefil amsel [DuB4) 015
b, Income Tax relaled lo this lems 021 -
[0.63) 0.15
Tatal comprehensive Inceme 430.84 1.260.43
Other Comprehensive Income for The Year Athibulable fo : 3
[l Mon - Controling Inferest . -
[il} Cramvars of The Compony 063 015
Tolal Comprehensive income for The Year Alfributable fo : - -
(I} Hon - Conlroling Inferesi - -
(i) Crevmeers of The Company 63084 1.280.43
Earnings Per Share (Face Valve of Rs. 10 each) 34
Rowmic MM 4388
Diluted 093 43.88
o0 oG anying noles 3 ol stafermnents
As per our report of aven dota
For Mukesh M Shah & Cao, For and on behall of the Board
Charlened Accounlants
Firm Registration No: 106625W "o‘f{,\
) q
Harsh Kejriwal w ﬁ;ﬂhﬂ Karan Kaushal|
Partner Chgimnion CECH
Membenhip Number ;| 128470 Dixd 00034051 ~
Al Dated : 3ist i
e po g B
hal Araria Shikhea Jaln
CFO Company Secrelary
Ahmedabad, Dated : 31s! May, 2023




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

[Unless otherwise stotad, all amounts are in Million Indian Em’_

For the year | For the year
Farficulars ending March|ending March
31,2023 31, 2022
A. Cash flow from operaling aclivilies
Met profit belore tax and exiraordinary items B11.04 1.523.63
Adiustment for:
Interest Income [5&.B6] [29.42)
Employee Benefil Expense 0.06
Finance Cosls 22903 22077
Fair value measurement of financial assels 10.52] {1.08)
Remesurement of defined benefits 10.463) -
Frovision for Expense [nel) 177.25 4828
Frafif on sale of asset [0.18) -
Depreciation and Amaortisalion expense 208.98 15038
Operating profit before working copital changes 1.368.16 1.912.54
{Increasel/Decrease in Other Assats (850.85) 137012
(increasel/Decrease in Invenliories [2.14) [f.111
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (159.08) [115.24)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 339.20 14.11
Increase/[Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 320.82 130,08
Ingr r in Qlher Liabilifies (202.03) [57.a0]
Cash oenerated from operafion 814.08 1.504.74
Direct taxes (paid)/Refund (280.41) (218.37)
sh flow before exiraordin ifem 533.47 1,284 39
[Net eash from operafing activities [al 533.87 1,284.39
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest Income 49.04 17.31
Invesiment in Mutual Fund (730.32) (138.75)
Sale of Mutual Fund 290,37 -
Invesiment in subsidainy [66.92) -
Loans [given) frepaid - (77.42)
f Fi |, copital work in proaress) [1.625.18] [904,53]
Het cash used in investing activities [[=]] {2,083.00) (1.103.39)
C. Cash flow from financing acfivilies
Proceeds from equity shares issved lincl Securifies Premium) 412.43 15,73
Proceeds from Banks Bomowings 115272 163.20
Repayment Towards Banks Borowings (108.4%) 162.51
Changes in $hort term Bomowing (4% 98] 49 98
Finance Cosls [192.24) (193.53]
Lease cost (21.411 (11.87]
Stamp duty on issue of shares {1.79) -
Dividend [14.58] [34.99]
Net cash from financing activities [T] 1,174,55 150.5%
Mel increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) 1372.78) 333,99
Cash and cash equivalents — opening balance 591.49 257.50
eguivalents — i lance 218.71 591.49
Recenciliafion of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Caosh and cash eguivalents ot the end of the vear comprises
(o) Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 21804 591.17
(b} Cash on hond 0.45 032
218.71 £91.4%

Motes:
(i} The cash Flow statement reflects the cash flows peraining to confinuing operalions,

Statement”

and non-cash Changes

see accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our repord of even dale
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accouniants

Firm Eeaqistration No: 106625W

(i) The cash Flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set oul in IND AS - 7 Cash Flow

(i) Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows

For and on behalf of the Board

A
Harsh Kejriwal mm

“Sahu
Pariner hairfnan
Membershio Number ; 128870 DI 200034051
Ahmedabad, Dated : 315t May, 2023 ﬂﬂf—
A2,
rshal Anjaria
FO

i

: 31st May, 2023

et

Karan Kaushal

CEOQ
Shikha Jain
Company Secretary




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(o) Equity Share Capital

[Uniew ofnerwise sated, ol omounts

Equity Shares of INR 10/- each, lssued, Subseribed and Fully Paid-up

As ol March 31, 2021

Add: lsvad duning the peried betwean 15t Aprl, 2021 o 31t March, 2022
As ol March 31, 2022

Add: isved during the period betwaen 15t Apdl 207Ho 3151 karch, 2023
As gf Merch 31, 2023

2.89.59.471 T89.5%
3.70.204.00 370
L.93.49.677 293,70
£.90.000 590
3.02.59.637 302.60 |

(B) Oitheér equily

funiledgs sfngnwiip Pated, ol cmountl one i LAEsS Indion Rubees

B T i Olher Comprehentive
Equity Income
compone |
| i Equity
Parficulars :n:':::un | Shaore | Prolit and 'LmnnI’:: rsicupuants Tatal
I General | Securities | thesugh
d hingncial asanve: | Prenasin sﬁppknﬁu Lasz defined "
instrument | nMoney | account | benefd = Riaal
E | plans ve income
1
1 211,08 - 42,35 - 433.41 (0.67) -
Prafi lof the vear period 2021-22 . . = - 1.780.28 l,%%‘
Eguity Component of Preflerence Shares - - . - - - -
Remessuremanis of the delined benefit gsset - - - - - Q15 . Q.15
Shore Apphzotion Money Receved/(Relunded) . . . - - - - .
Dividend Dhstibution Tax - - - - - ! ¥ 3
Cergorale Dividend . . = = [35.00) - . 135.000
Transaclion Cosl on ilue of shares - . z 5 - = : -
m = - £ 1203 = L) - . 1203 |
Balonce as at 31 Mareh 2022 211.05 - 5429 - 1,878 4% {0.52] - 2.143.50
Profit for the veor penod 202223 . . . . &31.48 - 43148
EBauity Comoonent of Preferance Shares - - - - - B -
Remneairements of the defined benefit asset 5 2 . - . 063 10,631
Share spoicofion Money Receved/Redunded) - . - . . . . +
Dividend Ditibufion Tax - - - - - - . -
Corperale Dividend . . - . [14.58) - - {1.4.68]
Transocfion Cost on issve of shores - - [1.7%] - B B - 11.7%]
- 40073 - - . . 40373
at 31 March, 2023 F11.05 - 454 34 . Z,495.48 {115} - 306143
A3 per our renor of even dale ==
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. =y Far and on behall ol the Board
Chonensd H.‘CUI.II‘IMM!-
Firm Regisiration
|Harsh Kejriwal Earan Kaushal
Partnar hl:a'man CEQ
Mamibershio Mumber ; 128470 (. ] ﬂ:ﬂ}luﬁl " -
Ahmedabod, Doted : 315t Moy, 20 #Jp‘j,
nl 5 a Jain
ICF{} Company Sacralary
Ahmedgbod, Doted | 315t Moy, 273




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

1.  Company Information

IRM Energy Limited [formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated
on 01# December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or carry out the
business of storage. supply. distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or
incidental to the laying. operating., maintaining & expanding of the City Gas
Distribution Networks. The Company was converted into Public Company
consequent to which a fresh certificate of incorporation dated 239 March, 2022 was
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad. The Company is
currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha District in the State of Gujarat,
Fatehgarh Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Div and Gir Somnath Districts in
the State of Gujarat as per the authorisation granted by Petroleurn & Matural Gas
Regulatory Board (PNGRB). The Company was awarded the authorisation for City Gas
Distribution in the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli Districis in the
State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022,

The registered office of the Company is located at 4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet
Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, 5.G. Highway, Ahmedabad - 380054, Gujarat.

2. Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The Consclidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as amended from time to time. The significant accounting policies that are
used in the preparation of these financial stafements are summarised below:

3. Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financialstatements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nofified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

3.2 Historical cost convention

The Consolidated Financiall Statements have been prepared on a historical cost
convention & on an accrual basis, except for certain iterns that are measured at
fair value as reguired by relevant Ind AS:

+ Financial assets & financial liakilities measured initially at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial Instruments);
= Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefifs.




3.3 Current vs Non-Current Classification

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following
conditions:
a. The asset/liability is expected to be realised/ setled in the Company's normal

operating cycle;

b. The asset is intended for sale or consurmption;
c. The asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

d. The asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after
the reporting period.

e. The asset is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged
or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period;

f. In case of liability, the Company does not have unconditional right to defer the
Settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporiing period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-cumrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities
respectively.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the
Company has ascertained its normal operafing cycle as twelve months. This is
based on the nature of services and fime between acquisition of assets for
processing and their redlisation in cash and cash equivalents

3.4 Principles of equity accounting for Consolidation

The Company has included its below joint venture, associates and subsidiary in
these consolidated financial statements.

Shareholding as at
::; Name of Company In‘c:::::rztﬂi;n Relationship March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
1 Farm Gas Private Limited India Joint Venture 50% 50%
Venuka Polymers Private : J
2 Limited India Joint Venture 50% 50%
Mi-Hon Cylinders Private : .
3 Liriladl India Joint Veniure 50% 50%
SKI-Clean  Energy  Private ' ok
4 Limited India Subsidiary 70%
SAF Clean Energy Private . .
& Limited Ircica Associate 13%

Consclidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a
member of the group uvses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements, appropriate adjustments are made to
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group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements fo ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of all the enfities used for the purpose of consclidation
are drawn up to same reporiing date as that of the parent company.

After application of the equity method, at each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If there exists such evidence, the Group determines extent of
impairment and then recognises the loss in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The Restated Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the
following basis:

Equity accounting

Under the equity methed of accounting, the investments are inifially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company’s share of the posi-
acquisifion profits or losses and other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested forimpairment
in accordance with the policy described in note 3.20 below.

Subsidiary Enfity

The financial statements of the Parent and subsidiary enfifies have been
consclidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating infra-group balances, intra-
group transactions and resulting unrealised profits or losses in accordance with
Ind AS 110 "Consolidated Financial Statements”. Further, the carrying amount of
the Parent's investments in subsidiary and the Parent's porfion of equity in
subsidiary are eliminated on consclidation.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially
being recognised at cost in the consclidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the
share of profit/ loss of each of the associate companies, joint venture (the loss
being restricted to the cost of investment) has been added to / deducted from
the cost of investments.

Use of estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Consclidated Financiall Statements in conformity with Ind AS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management 1o exercise ifs judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. -The management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or area where
assumpftions & estimates are significant to these Consolidated Financiall
Statements are disclosed below.

The preparation of Consolidated Financiall Statements in conformity with the
Accounting Standards generally accepted in India requires, the management




to make estimates & assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets &
liabilities & disclosure of confingent liabilities as the date of the Consolidated
Financiall Statements & reported amounts of revenues & expenses for the yvear.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting
esfimates is recognised prospectively in curent & future periods.

When preparing the Consolidated Financiall Statements. management
undertakes a number of judgments', esfimates & assumptions about the
recognition & measurement of assets, liabilities, income & expenses. In the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the following judgments
have been made apart from those involving esfimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial information.
Judgements are based on the information available at the date of balance
sheet.

(i) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax posifions.

(i) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent
a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an esfimate of an asset's expected useful life & the
expected residual value at the end of its life. Management reviews
the residual values, useful lives & methods of depreciation of
property, plant & eqguipment at each reporting period end & any
revision to these is recognised prospectively in current & future
periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life. such as changes in technology.

(iii) Employee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making
judgmenis about the life expectancy, discounfing rate, salary
increase, etc. Which significantly affect the working of the present
value of future liabilities on account of employee benefits by way of
defined benefit plans.

(iv) Impairment of assets & investmenis: Significant judgment is involved
in determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments,

Property, Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine its value in use
to assess whether there is any impairment in its carmying amount as
reflected in the financials.

(v) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. The management assumes that taxable
profits will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

[wi) Recognition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case
of customers where meter reading dates for billing is not matching
with reporting date, the gas sales between last meter reading dote
& reporting date has been accrued by the company based on past
average sales. The actual sales revenue may vary compared fo
accrued unbilled revenue so included in Sale of natural gos &
classified under current financial assets.

Recognition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources & on post experience &




3.4

(wiii)

(ix)

circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow
of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so
provided & included as liability.

Provision on receivables/fadvances : The Company has a defined
policy for provision of receivables which is based on the ageing of
receivables. The Company reviews the policy at regular intervals.
Provision for Inventory including Capital Inventory: The Company has
a defined policy for provision of slow and non-moving inventory
based on the ageing of inventory. The Company reviews the policy
at regular intervals.

Property, Plant & Equipment

(i
(i

(i)

Freehold land is camied at historical cost,

Property, Plant and Equipment other than land are stated at cost of
acquisiion / construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly
atiributable & ascertainable, to completing the project which includes
freight, dufies & taxes (to the extent credit is not available) ,other
incidental expenses relating to acquisition and installation and pre-
operative expenses. These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant
& machinery, cost of laying of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning &
testing charge, detailed engineerng & interest on bomrowings
attributable to acquisition of such assets. The gas distribution networks
are treated as commissioned when supply of gas commences to the
customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property. plant and
Equipment is added to its book value anly if it increases the future
economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses incurred towards normal
repairs and maintenance of the existing property, plant and Equipment
(including cost of replacing parts) are charged to profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

Interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of
Property, Plant and Equipment for the period of construction is added
to the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators
where applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they
meet the definition provided under Ind AS 14 subject to materiality as
determined by the management & followed consistently.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which
are yet fo be commissioned & capital inventory, which comprises stock
of capital gitems/construction materials at respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & ascertainable expenditure, incidental &
related to construction incurred during the period of construction on a
project. fill it is commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP)
& after commissioning the same is fransferred / allocated to the
respective "Property, Plant and Equipment'.




Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as
capital advances under other non- current assets.

(iv) Depreciation i wi follow:

» Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis on the straight line method
('SLM') as prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 which are
in line with their estimated useful life , except for the following assets where
depreciafion is charged on pro-rata basis over the estimated useful life of
the assets based on technical advice taking into account the nature of the
asset, the estimated usage of the assef, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replocement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support etc.

The estimated Useful life of Asset is below

Name of Asset Useful life
Building 25 Years
Computer and Laplops 3 Years
Flant and Machinery- Fipelines and Last Mile

Connectivity o Ve

Plant and Machinery- CHG Stations

Equipments and Installations Hla
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment SYears
Vehicles 5 Years
Software 5 Years

o The management believes thatl these useful lives are realistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
ikely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable
amount (remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining uvseful life.

o For the purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concemed.

» Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acguired /
disposed-off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the date of addition [ disposal.

+ Depreciafion on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition.

»  Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit & loss
under Other Expenses/income.




3.7

3.8

* The camying amount of assefs, including those assets that are not yet
available for use, are reviewed at each balance sheet date o
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, recoverable amount of asset is determined. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of
asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been
determined if noimpairment loss had been recognised. (Cross Reference
Note Impairment)

() Iniongible Assets:

Intangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way
(ROW) permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of
developing software for internal use. The Company capitalises software
as Intangible Asset where it is expected to provide future enduring
economic benefils. Cost associated with maintaining software
pregrammes are recognised as expenses as & when incurred.

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the period
for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor of payment
is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such ROW charges is
considered as 10 years.

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition of the intangible asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds & the canying
amount of the intangible asset) is charged to revenue in the income
statement when the intangible asset is derecognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency fransactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of such fransactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet
date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
Balance Sheet. Gain/Loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange
rates on settlement/iranslation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to
borrowing costs, in which case they are capitalised along with the borowing
cost,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of confrol of promised products or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is
measured based on the fransaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted
for discounts and other incentives, if any. as per confracts with the customers.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers in its capacity as agent.

Sale of MNatural Gas is recognized on supply of gas fo customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the measurability or collectability of the sale consideration. Sales are billed bi-
monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnightly for commercial & non-
commercial customers & fortnightly for industri 5 as the timing of the




3.9

3.10

an

transfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales
agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed Natural Gas (CNG]) is recognized
on sale of gas to consumers from retail outlets.

The amount recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty & exclusive
of Sales Tax /Value Added Tax [VAT), Goods & Service Tax And is net of frade
discounts or quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the last biling cycle to the
Balance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected fowards connection charges from cerfain domesfic
customers are “MNon-Refundable Charges". Accerdingly, the same are
recognized as revenue as an when the Company receives the amount from such
customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes amount
“refundable” in nature. Accordingly. the same are recognized as a liability under
the head "Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet.

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividends Income from invesiment is recognised at the fime the right fo receive
payment is established.

Borrowing Costs

i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly
atfributable to the acquisiion or construction of qualifying asset up to
the date of commissioning. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time (i.e. twelve months or more) to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Transaction cost in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over
the tenor of respective loan.

(i) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in
which they are incurred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets and investment in
associated

The Company. at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such
indication exists, assets are impaired by comparing carrying amount of each
asset &/ or cash generating unit to the recoverable amount being higher of the
net selling price or value in use, Value in use is determined from the present value
of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued
at lower of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average

», cost method. Where Cost of inventories includes all other costs incurred in

\gbringing the inventories to their present location and condition and Net
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Realisable Value is the esfimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the
sale. Necessary adjustment for shortage / excess stock is given based on the
available evidence and past experience of the company.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc) are
valued at lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on moving
weighted average basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises cument tax (i.e. amount of tax for the pericd
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & defered tax charge or
credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences beiween accounting
income & faxable income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised
in statement of profit or loss except fax expenses related to items recognised
directly in reserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which
are recognised with the underlying items.

(i) The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets & liabilities
attributable to temporary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Cumrent Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e.
as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time
fo time. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situafions in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for cument income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid & income tax provision
arising in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where
the Company is able fo & intends to settle the asset & liability on a net
basis.

(i) Deferred Tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between

the tax bases of the assets & liabilifies & their camying amounts in
Consolidated Financiall Statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax
are recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences being the
difference between taxable income & accounfing income that originate
in one period & are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods., the camy forward of unused tax losses & the carmry forward of
unused fax credits.
Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
& are expected fo apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
redlised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences & unused fox losses only if it is probable that future taxable
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amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences & losses.

Defered Tax Assefs & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset cument tax assets & liabilities & when the
defered tax balances relate 1o the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets & tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset & intends either to setfle on a net basis, or to
redlise the asset & setile the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except fo the extent
that it relates 1o items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT) under
the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1941 is recognised as defermed tax to
the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be ufilised. The said asset is
created by way of credit fo the statement of profit & loss & shown under
the head defemred tax asset.

The carrying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date & reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be ulilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporfing date & are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a initial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the coniract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a confract conveys the right o conirol the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an idenfified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and [iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use (ROU) asset and a comesponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arangemenis includes the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.




The ROU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on
the initial application date, that is amived based on incremental
borowing rate on the initial application date. They are subsequenily
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment lasses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the initial application date on a siraight-
line basis over the sharter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their camying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assefs. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present
value of the future lease payments on the date of initial application. The
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a cormesponding adjustment to the
related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise an extension or a termination opfion. Lease liability and ROU
assets have been separately presented in the Bolance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or
operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the confract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests
in the head lease and the sublease Consclidatedly. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset
arising from the head lease. For operafing leases, rental income is
recognized on a siraight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.14 Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to
be setfled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees'
services up to the end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are setlled. The liabilities are presented as cumrrent
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(i)

Defined Confribution Plan:

Confribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued
in accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory
provident fund authorities (Government administered provident fund
scheme). The Company does not camry any other obligation apart from
the monthly contribufion.

The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service. :




(i) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability is o defined benefit obligation and is computed at the
end of each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an
actuary appeinted for the purpose as per projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit abligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan
assets. The Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuafion, perfformed by an independent actuary, at each
balance sheet date using the projecited unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to the
market yields at the reporiing period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost in calculated by applying the discounting rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan
assets, Such costs are included in employvee benefit expenses in the
statement of Profit & Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from
experience adjustments & changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the period in which they occur directly in
"other comprehensive income” & are included in retained eamings in the
statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheet. Re-measurements
are not reclassified fo profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains & losses on curtailments & non-routine settliements;
s  Metinterest expense orincome.

(i) Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefils which are expecied fo
be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is
treated as long term employee benefits.

The Company's liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.,

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

3.15 Seament Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
_———=_reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company
o .94 dperates in a single segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure

o

&
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3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

requirements as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" have been disclosed by
the Company under note no 40.

Provisions, Confingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events & it is probable that the ocufflow of resocurces will be required to setlle
the obligation & in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure
for confingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may. but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not
recognised in the financial statement.

Provisions & confingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted
to reflect the corect management esfimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferals or
accruals of past or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
& item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance
sheet dale) occuring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the
Consolidated Financiall Statements. Material non adjusting events (that are
inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the bolance sheet date)
occumng after the balance sheet date that represents material change &
commitment affecting the financial position are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
[excluding other comprehensive income] for the year atfibutable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a
right issue, shares split & reserve share splits [consolidation of shares] that have
changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a comresponding
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for the year
attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
cutstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial asset of one




instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward
confracts, cross curency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, cumrency
oplions and embedded derivatives in the host contract.

a. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus transaction
costs attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of
financial assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortized cost or fair value depending on the company's business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value
of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as
considerafion for the fime value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a period, for
other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrafive costs),
and profit margin.

In assessing whether the confractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a confractual term that could change the fiming or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial Assetfs at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is fo hold
assets to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the finoncial asset represents
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest,

After initiadl measurement, such financial assefs are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amorfised cost is
calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. '




Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVOClH)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order fo collect contractual cash flows.
- the confractual terms of the financial asset represent
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis fo present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Company irevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in
equity instruments which are not held for frading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cosis
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement
of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are
measured at cost less impairment as per the Ind AS 27 -separate Financial
Statements.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its camying value of investmentis caried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its camying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for.

iii. Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (ie.
removed from the company's balance sheet) when:




- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or [b] the company has neither
transfemred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has franstemred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor fransferred control of the asset, the company
continues to recognize the fransfered asset to the extent of the
company’s confinuing involvement. In that cose, the company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Confinving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required to repay.

On derecognifion of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the camying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in the OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with ifs
assels camed at amortised cost and FYOCI debt insfruments on a
forward-looking basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

with regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified
approach as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the inifial
recognition of the frade receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount
equadl to the life time expected credit losses if the credit rsk on the
financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition.
b. Financial Ligbilities
i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at inifial recognition as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.




All financial liakilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of amortised cost, net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilifies measured at amortised cost

After the inifial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amariisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for frading and financial liabilities designated vpon inifial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the inifial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in the Ind AS 109 are safisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses atfributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are nof subsequently fransferred to
the F&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All the other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its confractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates
whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If
the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the criginal financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial assetis derecognised and a new financial asset
is recognised at fair value,
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If the cash flows of the modified asset caried at amortised cost are not
substantfially different, then the modification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates
the gross camying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount
arising from adjusting the gross carmrying amount as a medification gain or
loss in profit or loss. If such a medification is camied out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income. The gain
{ loss is recognised in other eguity in case of transaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Bommowings and other financial ligbilities are inifially recognised at fair value
(net of transaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair value and
the transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based
on the underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial
liability when ifs terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the camrying amount of the financial liability exfinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain
{ loss is recognised in other equity in case of fransaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference
Shares considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further
modified the estimates of future cash flows.

Fair Value Measurements

These Consolidated Financiall Statemenis are prepared under the historical cost
convention, except certain financial assets & liabilifies measured at fair value
[refer accounting policy on financial instruments) as per relevant applicable Ind
AS,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an ordery iransaciion between market parlicipants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liabkility, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-
financial assetfs. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its
assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available.
In that case management uses the best information avdilable. Estimated fair
values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's
length transaction at the reporting date

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumpfions that
market participanis would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market pariicipants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement
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of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest & best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in ifs highest &
best use.

The Company wuses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumsfances & for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets & liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Consclidated Financiall Statemenis are calegorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical
assets or liabilities

+ lLevel 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assefs & ligbilities that are recognised in the Consolidated Financiall
Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless
otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. ltems reflecting as 0.00
denotes value less than Rs, 50,000,
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IRM EMERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINAMCLAL STATEMENTS
Hate Parlic As at March | As ol March
M. . 3, 2033 31, 3022
5 [invesiments
& |Man Curment
il |Ungucted Investmend in Ecully Insirumants of Joind Condrol Endily [meotured af omodaed cosl)
« 17,21, 344 Equily Shores of Rs. 10 sach fully paid of Form Gas Privaie miled (3151 March 2022
17.21.344) 203 143.47
= 10,50.800 Ecuuiily Shisrés off R, 10 eoach fully poid of Verwko Polyman Privale kmised (3151 Morch 2022 9
10,50,8000 54 5.80
- 50,000 Equity Shores ol Ry. 10 each lully paid of Mi- Hen Cylinden: Privale Bmiled (313 Morch 2002: 1) 142 .80
(&l | Unaualed imeasimen in Fralerence Shares of Joint Coningd Enlity imeasured of amoriised coa]
= 44.50,000 Urits, 10.50% Cumidalive Redesmabie Prelerence Shares of R, 10 eoch fully poid of Farm d450
Got Privote Emited [315F Morch, 2022 £4,50,0000 e
= 42,10,200 Units 10.50% Cumuiciive Recesmabls Pralerence Shones of Rs. 10 eoch fully paid of
Venuka Polyrers Private Lrmed (315 Monch, 2022 42,10,200) 4210 “v10
EFERE] 25687
Aaoregate omound of Unauohed invesimenis |
Aasresaks incredte/idiminulion) in the valve of Uncuched nvedimaenty 1&
&8 Current
Unqualed invesiment in Units of Mutual Fund [Comed ot FYTPL]
Boroda Business Cycle Fund 4708 6746
50,758,800 unily 205t Morch, 2022 49.94,635)
Uriion Fax Cop Fund a7 479
146,033 urils [3151 March, 2022; |,£6,0%%
Unign Focused Fund £08 414
237,441 units [315f Monch, 2082 237.641)
Linan Hvisrd Eguity Fund 1827 1549
1249937 unis (3151 Morch, 2022 12,49.937)
Union Losoe & Midcap Fund 407 4.12
2.57.001 unils 313t srarch, 2022 247 .001)
Unicn Mapchum Durafion Fund 490 4.8
448,477 vnits (305t March, 2073 4.48.477)
Boroda BAP Paribas Fleod cop fund- Regular plon- Geowih %33
19,599,870 wnits 1315f Maorch, 2022: HEl)
Boroda BNP Poribas Mulli Assel Fund Reaulor Growih 2057
20,579,885 unils {3151 March, 2022 Nill
Uricn Comporabe Bond Fund Reaular Plan Growih 23,40
18,164,724 units (3051 March, 20322 Mill
Uniam Liguid Fund - Direct -Growih 25
181 wnits (3158 Monch, 2022 M)
Unkan Baud Fund Growth 19071
BSUBB2 wnits 13151 Mareh, 2022 il
linion Cwernighl Fund Growih 5001
42834 unilts (3154 Mosch, 2022 M
Uk Ml coo- Regular Plan - Growih 234
TARSTT unils (3151 March, 2022 )
Baroda BHP Pardbas Orwernight Fund- Reaulor Plan-Giowih S0
AZ5T3.536 unlts (314 Maorch, 2022 NIl
Borodo BNP Poribas Liowd fund - Reguisr Plan-Geowlh 10079
39211550 wnits [3158 Morch, 2002 W) e —
& [ﬁmmwbm:m
A4 |Loans
Lozna o Rebaled Porfies 1450 T4R0
Logn
TE43 7747
Amauni % ol Tobal Loans aed Terma of bepayment ord Indorest
Fype ol Bomewe: et : 5 sala
e Loon & eeued agan chargs
&h sumen] Ssoi! inclecevichie:
Jeied Conlbiel eellet T80 IR o cashfiow of S Comporny. The
Loon comies inlesest of 10.50% pa,
ond i epaycbis in 18 monkha,

&8 | Olher Ainancial assels

Security Deoosi
To Reloted Porlies [Ursecured, considered pood] DLdd 0.4
T Others [Ursecured, considered good] 25.60 1579
|Eank Bolgnces & M
Balance in FOR Accounts B4.00 166,25/
*Thir Caniipcafy bt Bsued Bank Guaronbees in lovouwr of PNGRE durdng nomal course of business,
Swch Bank Guononiees one isuwed by the Banks ogainst Morgin Money kepd wilh bank in the fomn of
Finesd Deposits comying motusity of mare than 12 monihs.
7 |Other non- cument .
Uinsecured, comsidened goodl- Relaled Porty ss -
Copilal odvances lnsecured, comidened 330939 azor
Unomeribed sxpenses - Bomowing Cos! under BIR 1746 1701
13
[} inventorkes [measwed of lower of cost or net reclsable value) 2. ﬂ
Holural Gas P52 1208
Spores ond Consurnobies L] 513
{Far Viahaation- Reder nole 3011)
1529 1715
¥ |Cument Bnancial assels : Trode receivables =
sacured, considensd good [secuned opoirst security denostil)* A0 147.06
Ursecued, corsdered aood [Olhet) LT
38477 TI704




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i Portic ulars As at March | As af March
Ne. 31, 2023 31, 2022
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule os on 31.03.2023
Cvtstanding for following periods from due
1Fﬂdltuh“ Unbilled | Not Due date of Payment
- | ¢months-1 | 3-3Years |
1] Unchisputed Trade receivabiles - cordidered good 2510 | 24330 117.53 027 0.01
(i} Undisputed Trode Receivables = which have significant increase in - - 5 2 =
(R} Undisputed Trode Receivables - credst impaired ‘ = 2 d
{iv) Dsputed Trode Receivables— comsidered good . - - o
{v] Duputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in . . - - s
[vi} Disputed Trode Receivables = credil impoired - - = & -
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03,2022
Outztanding led lollowing periods from due
Particulars Unbilled | Not Due date of Fayment
lgssthand | & months - 1 2-3 Yeors
i) Undisputed Trode recenobles - considered good 1183 | 17897 36,32 0.00
{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables = which have significont increase in - - - =
(] Undsputed Trode Receivabiles — credit impaired - & - - 5
[iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good - C = _ 5
[v] Disputed Trode Receivables — which have significont increase in - = = - =
[vi} Disputed Trade Receivables - cred impoied - - = . :
10 |Current flinancial assets
10A|Cash and cash equivalents
[a) Balance with banks
Balonce in Cument Accounis 1810 £51.17
b} Cash on hand 0.45 0.32
108 |Bank balances cther than above L 2
{a] Morgin Money deposits under Ben ogoinst DSRA, Bank Guarantee and/or Stand By Letier of Credit TE506 405 57
*The Compony has issued Bank Guoroniees ond Stand-By Letter of Credt(SBLC) to vorious Gov.

agencies and olher Suppkers during normal course of business. Such Bank Guarantees and SBLC hove
been ssued agoinst Margin Money kept with bank in the fonm of Fixed Deposits carmying maturty of
between 3 monihs fo 12 months. Further. as per the financing document, the Company haos obo
created Debt Service Reserve Accoun! of Fued Deposit wilh 1he Bani.

$84.83 FF7
11 |Cwrrent financial assels : Ofthers 2
Insurance Cloim Receivable - 219
Interest Receivabla 18.44 11.47
Deposi - Current 18.68 11,26
Imiprest amount with Employees 0.74 D.E4 |
ar
12  |[Olher cument assels = 25
Advance 1o Suppbers (Unsecured, Corsidered good) 81.80 16.24
Receivables - Reloted Porties 8232
IFO Expenses® 9037 -
Prepaid Bxpernme 29.17 2793
26386 44,17

“Post the Shoreholder's approval dated Movember 15, 2022, the Company has filed fhe Droft Red Hering Prospectus (DRHP) on
December 14, 2022. The Company received the finol observafion letier from SEBI on Febryary 21, 2023 ond oko from the Bombay Stock
Exchonge and Mafional Slock Exchonge on Jonuary 27, 2023 and Janwary 30, 2023 respectively. The approval from stock exchanges is
communicoled fo SEBI on Jonwary 30, 2023 Considering fhe some, il the isfing dale, IPO reioted expenses one grouped under other
curreni assets

13 |Share capifal -

Avthorised : a
5,00.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Eoch (315t March, 2022 5,00.00.000) 500,00 500.00
4,00.00,000 Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- Each 400,00 400.00 |

700.00 F00.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares : - o

Equity shares u i«
3.02,59.677 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- eoch 302.40 293.70

(315t March, 2022 2,93.67,677) :

Preference shares .

% Optionally Converlible Curmulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- Each -
(o3 of Morch 31, 20019: M shores of Rs. 10/- each) [Refer Mote Mo. Bifl (o) below] -

10% Redeemoble Preference Shares 3.4%.9%,432 shares of Rs. 10/~ each -
{315t March, 2022: 3.49,99.£32)

i B 302,60 273.70 |
As of Morch | As al March
Particulars
31, 2023 31, 2022
Al the beginning of the penod [ veor
- Nurnbser of shores 28389477 2.89.99.471
= In Bs. Millicn 29370 287.99
Chonge during the pedod [ yeor
= Mumber of shares 890,000 3. 70,204
- lIn Rs. Milion B0 370

Al the end of the pedod / year

- Humber of shares 3,02 59 477
- in Rs, Milkon 302.60
10% Nen Cumulalive Reedemable Preference Shares
Al the beginning of the pedod / veaor
- Humibes of shones 3,49.99,432
= In Rg, Milion 34999

Change diring the peniod / vear
= Mumber of shones
= In Rs. Milion

Al the end of the period [ year
- Mumber of shares 3,49 59,432
- In Bs. Million 34799




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANTING NOTES 1O CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hale Asol March | As ol March
He. oo 3, 21 1, 2022
= Mumiber of shores 1.49.78,535 148,78, 535
- &% Holding £7.50% 51.00%
= o 1.50% 35%
|Dr. B B Miodh (Trushes of B84 Trust] [Promotes)
= Humiser of hared 55.80.238 55,860,738
-I'.!-lnl-ﬁm 18.44% 19.00%
Chanos during oernod 0.54% L. 1 X%
Ervpriech Disiribaution Hﬂml‘ﬂ Pl L,
= Mumbser of shares Ba.70.128 B5.70,124
- % Holding o F LR
- Chanss during Dadad -0ATE 0.00%
Bl 10%: Mon Cumulsiive Reedemable Preference Shares
Codda Phomacedticals Lid [Pramaber)
= Mumber of shones FAREFA2 A7 97 432
Eh:ohiw 100.00% 100.00%
€ |Terms /righls alached o eauilty sharei:

The company has only one class of equity shores having par value of R 10 per share. Equity sharehoicens ore enlilled 1o one voile per
shore hedd, The dividend provided, @ any, by boord of cirecizn B wisies! i appreval of sharsholders in Arnuol Generncl Meating,
excepl, in cose of inlerdm dhvidend. In Ihe event of Bquidalion of ihe company, he equily thareholders sholl be enlilied io proporicnate
shore ol ther holding in fhe ossets remgining offer disiribution of oll preferentcl crmounis
Red: ble Non- C w Prederence Shares [RPS):

Mﬂmum:mrﬁmmwdmrmh‘mlhummmmmmmmjmy Iy boord of

Ditfvid
A Stofemend of profil and less %
Opaning bolaonce 1. BTE D 433,42
Agd: Resenas ol e Baginning of Ihe pefiod ol Joint Conbol Enlity, occuoied during the veor 300
Add: Transter rom statement of orofil ond loss 31,86 1.280.28

an Equily thares 114.48) RAs.001
MWWINWEDCIE - =
a 249548 |  1B7B&Y |
B. Equity t of Freferenc e Shares :

I} DCCPS [OpSonally Converible Cumulative Freference Shares) .
Ooening 024 0.24
Eguily Component ol OCCPS i i
aling Balanse 0.24 024

Resdemable Preference Shares =

2081 21081

Eawity Componen! of non-cumuiaiive redeemable orefeence shones - -
210811 2 3108 |

211051 V.05 ]

C. lberns of OCI - Rermeainemaent of ihe nel defined benefil Bab@ity fassel, nef of lax eflect G
oo of ihe nali dafined benalil labiity/omel, nel of hox ellect pah Py

Rernisasuremant , ¥ [0.43) 01%

Clesing balance (L5 [EF]

*Remacsuramant of defined benelil plors represenis ociuial goin ond Ioaset ond rehums on plon aiets -

| [eschachng inbales| incormal,

b, Secwilies Fremium 4
Ooaning Bolonce S54.28 4235
Adiilion during e venor 403.73 1203
Less: Trorsoction ol on bwe of shore 11.7%). -

A5h. 24 5428 |

Tedal Rejenid ERTANE] L.143.50

L} Jecirily preqmium represents the premium recelved on kave of shoves over ond obove the fooe vaiue ol Equity Shanes,
Such ameint s cvalabile ler ullizalion in accordance of the Provisions of the Companles Act, 2013

i.) The porfion of profits not distituied omong the shomeholders ore lenmed o3 Reloined Bamings. The Group miay uliize he retoined

Eﬂﬂmiﬁmwhrﬂmkhmuﬂmwm plons or any ciher puUrpcse O approved by the Bocrd of Direclons of tha
ompany.

15 [Mon Conbrolling Interest

Han Conlralinag inberes! in 5K Clean Energy Pyl Lid

£ [ =
1&  |Won- curend fincncial Bobdsies | Bomowings L -
T6A | Hon-Curment .
Secured [camied al amerdized cos) g

Rupes Term loons rom bonis 1550402 L4750
Wakicle Loan 9.7 B2
Unse-curad .

T kedns fom bants 1,050.00
Pralerance thares

lability comoonent 10% Mon cumulalive RBedeemable Frelerence Shares of Re. 10/- each e A L 1EEE

158 | Cumrant
Secumed (cared of armorized cosf)
Rupes Term laand nom banks
Cusrant Mobyrities of Rupee Term Loen from Boniks 2480
‘Warking Cogital Loan kom Bonks
WirhiCly Loon




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Naole
Ho.

Farticulars

As al March
31, 2023

As al March
31, 2022

1A}

]

Dty of Secured loans
2m

Pardiculars

Terms of Repayment and Interest rate

|Rupee Term loan: For project of City Gas Distibution of Banaskantha ond Fatehgorh
Sahib District [consorfium of bonks: Unien Bank of India and Bank of Boroda]

40 quatedy instoliments stared from July
2021 ond Inferest role ranges from | yeor
MCLR +0.25% fo | Year MCLR+1.00%

Rupea Tefm loan: For project of City Gas Distibufion of Div and Gir Somnoih Dislict
[consorlium of banks: Bank of Baredo . Union Bank of Indioc and  Punjaly Mational Bank)

15t Tranche: 20 quatedy inslallments from
April, 2023

2nd Tronche: 20 quatedy installments from

April, 2027 and Interest rate ranges from 1

yeor MCLR +0.20% to 1 Yaor MCLR+1 D0

Unsecured Looan from HDFC Bank Limited: To meet ihe Copex Requirement of the
compQmny

20% of the term Loan is repayoble in the
second Yeor ond Balanced 80% of the Term
Loan & Repayable in he Thind Year and
Interes! rate applicable is 3 monihs T - Bill +
1.7%%

Unsecuwred Loan from Kolok Bank Limitedt To mee! the Copex Requirement of the
Company

Laan shall Be Repaid by way of 8 Equal
Instaliments starting From 15 th Manth
Follewing The Month Of First Disbursemeni
and Interest Rale opplicabile is 3 Month MCLR
+2 40%

Verscle Loans (Unicn Bonk of India)

Repayable in 84 Eguivaleni Monihtly
Instaliments and interes! rabe inked 1o 3
micnih EBLR + 0,40%

I'FIThc ﬂ'r.lpwlwm Lqmbmuedmbe&nw
-Exclusive change on DSRA crealed lor the specific project.

| The Werking Capilol i secured o3 balow:
(8] The Vehicle Loans are secured by Charge on Vahicle.

371761 mrilion)
[vi] For more security defoils on bank financing. reler Mole - 37

-First charge an the Trust and Refenfion Account of the specific project on por possw basls.
-First chorge on curent assels incl. cosh flows, receivobles. eicl. both present and fulune, of the specific profects on pad possu basis.

-Firsi Chorge on movoble and immovable cuels [bolh present and lulwee) relaling 1o the specific profects on par possu bosis,

-Second Chorge on movoble and immovable ossels [both present ond fubwe] relofing lo the specilic proiects on pard passu bask,
~Firsl choige on curent ossels [incl cosh liows, receivables. alc). bolh present and lulure, of The specilic prolects on por possy boss

[iw} Thene B no detoull in repayment of loon and interes! Thereon as on 315t March 2023, 31 March, 2022,
[v) The book value of the fued amsels oz on Morch 31, 302 charged in lovour of The lendars i Rs. 512584 milkon [incl CWIP) [March 31, 2022: Rs.

[v#& The borowings cbiained by the comparny and joinl controlled and Subsidary enlifies from banks have been applied bor the puposes lor which

wuch loans were baken,
CReconcilialion of quarterdy refums or stalements of cument cssets fled by the Company with bonks of inancial inditulions
Guarer Ended Parficular As per Statement As Per Books Difference
Closing Stock 13.67 14,47 A0
June, 2022 Debion 355.71 34T -B.43
Crediion 255,83 044 124.61
Closing Slock 15.25 15.25 0.00
Seplember, 2022 Debtors 448 51 477.05 8.54
Creditors 240,18 25684 14,68
Closing Slock 17.50 17.90 0.00
December, 2022 Debiors 42507 41428 -8.89
Creditorns B83.08 22327 14£0.19
Chosing Slock 19.29 19.29 0.00
March. 2023 Debtars 344,32 354532 0.00
Creditors 257.52 264,82 .30

[The Diffemces & On Account of Accounfing Enlry Passed Subsequently 1o Fling of Stock Statement.

agreement wilh the boaks of accounts.

Subsequent to year end, Company has submitied the revised statement for all quarters and o figures as per revised statement ore in

17 |[Cument financial hobilfties : Trade payables
Total oulstanding dves of micro enterprises and small enlerprises:-
Trode Poyobdes | Micro and Small enlerises 1.85 243
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enferprises:-
Trode payobles - Gos Purchase [ Transmission 23772 139.67
Trode pavables - Relaled parlies - 11.02
Trode payables - Others 7187 9780 |
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2003
Outstanding for following
pericds from dve date of
|Particulars Mot Due poyment
Less than 1 2.3
Year ekl
] MSME 1.85 = =
fii) Others 30725 034 -
{iii} Disputed dues- MSME 5 i :
Wiv] Disputed dues. Gihen - =
(Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2033
Owtstanding lor following
pericds from dee date of
Particulars Hot Due payment
Less than 1
- Yeor 2-3 years
i} MSEME 243 - -
[8] Ofhers 241.22 r.28 0u
[m) Cspuled dues- MSME - -
] Dispated dues- Ofhars - -




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hole M o Maich As gl Marsh
He. i a, 201 0201

bayond ihe oppoenied doy duning the occownling yeor

[Fv]The amaound of interest due & payaible for the pardod of delay in making payment [which hove been
paid b beyond the appoinied dioy during the year] bul withau! adding Ehe inleras! specifiad undar ihe . -
Macio, Small L Madium Erdepises Developimant Act, 2006
[¥] The @mcnlt of inheras! cccnsed & remaining unpoid of 1he ond of the occounting yoor . =
[} The amount of furiher inlerest remalning due & payoble even in ihe succeeding yeors, unil such dale
whan ihe intenes! dues obove are ochually paid o fhe small enferprise, for the purpose of dscliowance
of o deductible expendiiune under section 23 ol e Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development
At 2004

Mole: Infermation ol requined o be discliosed under the Micro, Smoll ond Medium Enlerprises Developmant Act, 2006 has been
datermined o ihe sxien] such pories hove been idenlified on The basis of informodion owglichle with the Compony

18 |Other Bnanclal llabllites
Men-Curant

Cuslomer Security Depaosil 213 19534
FTAT0 185,24 |
Curmen]
Credilon or Copliol Goods arase 13421
Oihers oaryable | S SN
_AE] 47 217,15
17 |Presitkens
“‘l%u&mmnmm 3n lﬂ,‘;g 735
13, 135
198 (Cument
Pravision for Emohsyves Banalts rahar Mode - 311 [ ] 0.4
g 041 |
20 ||Curent Babilifes | Others
Povobles - Reloted porlies Qo1
Stalyuion dues payolle 20

—1F1R
2092 41,41

21 |Cederred Tax Liobhilties fnef)
Delemad lox Bobiilies 185.15 147,13
185.1% 147,12
The gross 1 in the ded d fax account aie ai lollows |
el defamad iox (osal]/ BbEy of ihe becinning of the penod [ veor 142,12 P3.58
Dademed Tax Lisblite
Beoreckation 4588 g0 |
fal AFB4 £9.52
Dadprrad Tox Assalt
|Previgion lor Relirarmaent Banalty B4 0ar
2 ExpErae o -
Legee Lablity Q.62 15231
i) 1077 15,58 |
Hel [a-kB] 3807 53.54
18521 14712
Fot fhe year | For Bhe yeor
Pariculari ending March | ending March
31, 2023 31, 2022
32 |Revenue rom Operations
of Goods
CHG Soles |G of Towes] 4T84 LR4T34
FraG Scies S829.64 245471
Laola of Tarvices
Connachion Incoma an 2049
Other Operafing Revanues AT
EXIAAE
23 | Other Income
Gain on iemaaiwemenl of inonciol Assets .52 1.08
Profit on Sole of Asset 0.8 -
interest Income 5484
AR 2050
24 |Purchases of sfock-in-kade of notwal gm
Nabural Gas II52T 229237 |
Iregar |l 249337
25 |Changes in invenlorles of Nolural Gas
Chaonges in invenlores of finkthed goods. slock in hade and wark In orogeess - Mahunal Gat
Invanicry ol the beginning of ihe yeor [frdur] 204

Lesx: inventony of the end of the year LA i — 1
250 15951




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS
{Unies ofhenwise sioled. oll amounts ore in Milien Indian Rupeet) |
Nate Far the year For the year
N Particulars ending March ending
% 31,2023 |March 31, 2022
26  |Employvee Benefils Expense
Solories, woaes ond bonus T&93 &2.15
Company's contibulion o provident & other funds 37 238
Leave Encashment and Graluity (Refer nole 31) 388 302
Staft wellore exoenses 5,65 4.03
F0.83 71
27 Finonce Cosfs 55
Interesl Cost
= O Term Loan 121.04 129.47
= On Working Copitol 321 0.39
- On Preference Shaies 18.38 1671
- On Finance Lease Liobilly [reler Nobe 44) 147 499
= CHhers 2.2 4,96
Olher Bomowing Cost 198 1.4%
Bank and Clher Fnance Changes 47,41 _ 0.5 |
28 |Depreciolion and Amorsalion expense
Depreciotion of longible aisely [refer note 4] 184.40 137.97
Amorsation ol inlongible assels [reler node 4] 24,54 12.41
e e 208,78 150,38
27 Qiher Expenses
Adverliseman! and Morkefing Expenses 1670 10.0%
Business Promolion Expenses 3.40 1.94
Corporale Sociol Responsiblity Expense [reler Nole - 39] 15.40 403
Comumpion of Spares and Consumabiles 79 5.1%
Direclor's Siling Fees 488 2.78
Hirg Changes - Viehetle 29303 3720
Insurance Cost 780 A4
Foredgn Exchange Flecheation 039 -
Leqal ond Professional Chorges 1891 1677
Licemsa Feas 35.10 43.00
Prefiminary Expense -
Managerial Bemunerafion 732 2079
Power and fuel 10095 82.82
Rert fredes nole 43) 9.84 4.58
Repais ond Manlenance
-Buiiding oo 038
-Flant and Mochaneries 156.68 140,12
Repons ond Mantenance- Others 320 181
Stamo Duty Expense 398 1.24
Secwity Expense 4.94 4590
Tender Feas - 13.54
Traweling, Lodging and Boarding 1529 .15
Rates ond Taxes 3.07 0ia
Miscelloneous expenses 7310 2124 |
T45 50 £53.27
Payments lo ouditor® ¢
For Skofuiory Audil [incl G5T) 1.42 1.42
For Tox Audil [Incl G5T) 0.2v 046
For Cerfificofion & other reimbusements fincl. GST) 420 0.28
*lryehy in | P i
30 |Tox Experce
Corporabe Tax 14129 33450
Delered Tax [refer Mole - 21] ﬁ
177,57
304 |Reconclliofion of elfective tax raie
For the year For the year
Farticulors ending March ending’
3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax vsing Ihe Company's domeslic tax rale 25.17% FIRFEA
Prafil/(loss] belore bax 74438 1,523,463
Tax wsing Company's Domestic Tax rate 16736 383.50
Tax efiect of adjusimends in calculoting toxable Income
CSR Expense 306 1.52
Depracialion 138.24) 151.75)
Inferast on Current Tox - 8.30
Tax Expene of ecrlier yeors - .
CHber i 110.87) I7.04)
ncome Tox Experse repored inlo Profil and Loss Cumenl Yeor 141,29 334,50
Efteclive tox role 18.98% 21.95%]




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING HOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Employee Benclis:

[ Shert ferrm emploves benalits
All employese banelils payable whally within twelve months of rendering The service ore chassified a3 shoe ferm employee benefits, Benefils such os Solaries,
Incenlives & allowances, shor! fenms compansoled absences, elc., & the expecied cost of bonws, ex-grofio ore recognised in the yvear in which The
employes rendars the relaled service.

# Long lerm emplovee benallls

tal Gratualy [Unfunded):
The Company provides for geatuily for employees in India ai per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employess who ane in conlinuous senice for o periad of 5

yeors ane eligible lar gratuily. The amount of graluity poyoble on refkemant/lerrmination i the employees lost drown basic salory per menth compuled
propodionately for 1.5 doys salory multiplied lior The number of years of service, The grafuily phan b an unfunded plan. |

M%Mmhiﬂmhmhmm
== rmﬂ-m-ndhn Fot the year ending March 31, 2022

Table Showing Chonge In the Present Valve
@l Frajected Benefit Obligalion:
Present Volee of Benall Obliootion of the

Beginning of the Perdod 525 385
Intecesi Cost 038 027
Curmeni Servics Cost 1.45 1.m
[Benefit Paid Direcily by the Employer) 0.07) -

Acivarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligafions - Due to Change in Demaographic . 014
Actucriol (Gains)fLosses on Oblpation: - Due 1o Change in Financial 10.21] 022
Aciuarial [Gains)/Lostes on Obligafion - Due fo Experence 105 021

Fair Yalue of Fian Asveli al the End of Ihe Pedod
Amaount Recognited In the Balance Sheek:
[Present Value of Benelit Obligalion ol the end of ihe Pesiod) [7.85) [5.25)
Fair Value of Pion Assals ol the end of the Perdod = -
Funded Slatus [Surplusf [Deficit]) [7.85) (525
ot [Licbility] fAsset Recognized in the Bolance Sheat [7.65 [5.25)

Curmen! Service Cosl 1.45 1.28
ol Infenest Coal 0.38 027
Expenses Recoanied 1.83 1.55
Expentes Recognited in the Olher Comprehensive Income (OCI) for
Actuarial {Goins)/Losses on Cbiigation for the Perdod 0.85 ||:|.|5|I
Mat (Incomel/Expense For the Pericd Recognized in OC1 085 [0.15)
Baolance Sheel Reconcillation:
Opening Met Lioblity 525 ¥

Expenses Recognized in Stalement of Profif or Los 1.83 1.55
Expanses Recognized in OCI 085 10.15),
[Benefil Paid Directly by the Emplover] 10.07) '
Hat Liobility/{ Assel] Recognized in fhe Bolonce Shaat 785 525
Malurlty Analysls of ihe Benefit Payments: Frem fhe Emplayer:
Prajecied Banalils Payable in Fulure Years kom the Dale of Reporting
15t Following Yeor 027 o7
2nid Following Yeor 036 021
ard Folowing Year [ 02s
4th Following Year 045 030
Sth Following Yeaor 047 032
Surm of Yaors & To 10 .57 144
Surm of Yeors 11 & above 21.0% 1383
SensEivity Anakysks:
Profected Benefl Obligotion on Cumenl Assumplicns 185 525
Della Elfect ol +1% Change in Rale of Dicounting A7 B4R -50.00%
Della Effect of -1% Change in Rabe of Discounfing 106375 73.00%
Delia Eifect of +41'% Change in Role of Solory Incrocse P27% S500%
Delia Effect of -1% Chonge in Robe of Sclary Increase HI 4T -58.00%
Dalia Eflect of +1% Chﬂu&h Ealawr&qﬂwl’m 0.45% -2 00%
ta EMescl o - 1% -iml 200%

The: sensifivity analyss have been delermined based on reasonobly possible changet of the respective assumplions occuring of the end of the reporting
paricd, while holding of other csumplions constant.

The sendilivity analyiis presenied above may nol be representative of the oclual change in he projecied benelil oblgalion as it is uniikely Ihal the change
in assumplions would occur in solalion of one onother as some of the assumplions may be comelaled,

Furthermore, in presenfing the above senstivity anahysis, e present valve of the projected benelit cbligafion has been calculated wing fhe projected ynit
credif method al the end of the reporting perod, which is the some method as applied in coloulating The projected benelil obligalion os recognied in the
balance sheal.




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[ Leove Encashrment (unlunded]:

The employess of the compony ore enfifled to leave a1 per the leave policy of the company. The iabdity on occount of occumataled leave o on kel day
ol the aceounting year i recegnised [nel of the fair value of plon assels as of ihe balonce sheet dale] al present vaiue of the defined obligation al the
baolonce shee! dole based on the oclucral valualicn camied oul by an independen! acluary wing projecied unit credit meithod,

olheraise &g i MBcn Inclion

Particulars ForThe i For the year ending March 31, 2022
Table Showing Change in llve Fresen! Yalve of Frojecied Beneld Gbligalion
Present Value of Benefil Oblgation af the Beginning of ihe Parod 4.51 L7
Inferes! Cosl 033 0
Cument Service Cosl oy 082
Benelid Pold Direchly by the Employer 10,13 10.:22)
Actuarial (Gains]/Losses an Oblgalions - Due ko Change in Demographic . foum)
Actuanal (Gaing)/Losses on Oblgations - Due to Chonge in Fnancial .18 10.18]
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligalions - Due to Expedence 1.1 0.62
Present Value of Bonefil Obligation al the End of the Perdod 642 451
Change in lhe fair valve of plan assels:
Faiir Vialue of Plan Asiels ot the Beginning of the Peded - -
Inlerest Incomea - o
Fair Value of Plon Avels ol the End of the Period - -
Amounl Recoanized In the Balance Sheal
[Prasent Vaolwe of Benafit Oblgalion ol the end of the Perod) [4.£2) [4.51)
Fair Value of Flan Astels af fhe end of the Perod s -
Funded Stalus [Sunplusy |Dedhicit]] tﬁ-ﬂll [4.51)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost al the end of the Period . &
Hel Liabdity/ [Asel) Recognired in the Balance Shee [6.42) [4.51)
Expenszes [ [Incomes] recognised in the Malement of Prafit & Loss:
Cumeni Service Cost 077 [17: ]
el Inferes Cosl 033 0.23
Acivarnial (GoinshLosses 095 043
Expanses Recognized in the Slatement of Prafil or Loss 204 147
Balance 5heel Reconcilialion:
Opening Het Lability 4.51 3
Expense Recognized in Slalemaen of Profil or Lon 204 1.47
Hed Liobilly/lAseel] Transder In - .
Rel (Liobiify] /Asse! Transder Oul 13 ([
[Banalil Poid Dkeci‘h' by ihe Emipdower] - -
Hal Lia niired in he Baloncse | 542 4.51

#The rale of dacount is considered bosed on market yield on Govemmeanit Bonds having curency & terms in consishence wilh the curency & termns of the
post-employmant banelit obligations,

§ The eslimales of fulure solary increases are considered in aciuadial valualion, taking inle accounl inflalion, seniodly. promalion & ofher relevant factors
such os supply & demand in the employmeant marked.

32 Financial risk managemenl:

The Company’s activities expose it o credit risk. bquidity risk & marked risk. This note explaing the sources of risk which the entity & exposed 1o & how the
enlily manages The ik & the relaled impact in the Consclidaied FAncnclal Slalernants. The Companies risk managemsenl & dane in close co-ordination
‘with fhe boord of direchorn & locuses on oclively sacuing the Companies shord, medium & long-temn cosh llows by minimizsing The expose to volalle
financial markeds. Long-lerm financial invesiments ore monaged fo generale lasting refums. The Company dees not aclively engoge in The Foding of
financial asels for speculalive puposes nor does it wiile oplions. The most significant inancial ks 1o which the Company b exposed ore desciibed
Tomlonar:

il Cred mk:
Credd risk orses from fhe possiodity thal counter party may nol be able fo seltle their obligations o3 ogreed. The Compony b exposed o credh vk from
Irade receivables, bank deposils & olher inancial assals,
Bank doposits ore ploced with reputed banks [ financial inslitulions, Hence. there b no signiicond credil risk on such fiked deposils,
The Company perodicolly amsesses the Enancial reliobiity of the counter party, loking infe accoamt the inancial condilian, cument economic bends, &
analyis of histodcal bad debls 4 ogeing of occounts recetvable. Individual Brmils are se! accordingly.
The Company frades with recognized & credit wordhy thind parlies. H & ihe Companies policy thal all customens who wish lo rade on credit berms ore
subject fo oredit vesification procedurnes. In addifion, rode receivoble bolonces ore monitored on on on-going boss with he resull that The Companies
eapoiue 1o bad debls i nel sgrificant,
An impoirment onalysis & perdomed al eoch reperting dote an an individual basis tor majer clhients, in oddifion. o kege number of mino recaiables ane
grouped inte homogencus groups & assessed for impakment collectively. The colculalion b bosed on exchange losses hislordeal data, Also, the
Company does nol enber info soles ronsoclion with custormen hoving credil los history,

There are no sgnilicant credil faks with reloted parfies of The Company. Adeguale expected credil lotses are recognized as per the asessmaends.

@ Lty dsk;
Liqquiciity risk is defined os the risk that the Company will nol be able lo selile or mesl its cbligalions on lime or ot o reasonoble price. For the Company,
lcpuichity risk arises from obligations on account of fnanciol kobilities - bomowings, ode poyables & other fnonciol Babilifies.

The Company’s principle sources of kquidity are eaih & eash equivalents & the cash Bow that & generaled bom operotions. The Comparny beSeves thal
the working capiial is suificient o meet ils curent requirements. Accordingty, no liquidity risk is percetved. The Company closely monitors ifs Bguidity
pasifion & maoinlaine odequale source of funding.

o dligs ol § ol Sobiilies:
The lobles below analyse the Componies inancial kabilities info relevan! mabwrity groupings bosed on thelr conlrochual malueilies for all nen-dedvative
financial obillies. The amounls disclosed in the foble ore the confrociuc] undiscounted cosh flows. Balances due within 12 moniths equal ther comying
balances ot the impact of descounting is not significant.
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ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

[Uniess afernive tated, 6l Graunts o i MEion indian
Uploysorl | 1-5yean | Moreihons
mE 2000 v
s £ 197
30154 : ’
T Ti500
TOTAL 1.307.14 115.83 !1'9:5_#_
GRAND TOTAL
{Uriena alharwiie tholid, o omounts ore in Mon indlon
Uple year 1 1-5 years vk Ihan &
] BT 7Y
- 51 . 'i%:
737 oy gﬁ
TOTAL AT 1
RARDTOTAL e —

[iv] Morked rivk:
Marke risk s the sk thal chonges in marke! plces— such as loreign exchange rabes, inferest rales & equily pices — will allect the Companies income
af e value of ils haldings of inancial instrumenis.

vl Fomsign exchanae dik:
The Company & nol direclly exposed io foreign exchange itk ot no direct lareign cumency fransaclions are enbered info.
(vl Intprest Bote Ridk;
Inlerest rabe risk is he sk fhal the lai value of fulure cash llows of o financial instrument will lluciucte because of changes in marke! intenest rates. The

Companies expoiue o the rsk of changes in marked inferest rabes relabes pimardy Bo the Companies long-lerm debl obligalions with Moaling inlerest
raies,

The Cﬁrfmﬁ'&lh‘rmmmshfm@dchpqﬁswﬂl fmed inferes! rales,
The exposure of the Companies bomowing o inbenes! rale changes al the end of the reporing period are as follows:

Particubars As al March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2022
Vorkabie rale insirements
5 - -
oo Cataer— TERT p2ear
ed Eole insbrumanis ﬁ
Asiely ] PRI
v Inberes] rabe varlailo ] Impact ——
. Lhange Impact
seone- | +) 0.50% 1418 Fal
Seencio-1) [EEA| [(ENEN| 7211)

*Financial Assels excludes Invesimani in i Ventuas

33 Copital Management:

The ccmpany objeciives when managing copilal ane lo saleguand thelr ability to confinue a5 o golng concem 3o fhat they con confinue lo provide
relurns lor shareholders L benefils for olher siokehalders. & mainiain an oplimal siruciune bo reduce the cosl of capiol.

Rel Debl = Tohal ferm loan bomewings less cash & cath equivalents including curen! invesiments
Total ‘equity” means share copflal ksued [Equily Shares & Eauilty componen] ol Prelerence Shared] & accumulaled reserves,

Farfic ulars As of March 31, 2023 A of March 31, 3022
Tolal barawings [Mckuding Lioblity componeni of Redeemoble
Preteronce Shanes) 1036.35 202591
e4: cosh 2 oosh o iR 55147 |
Hal LB17.60 1454 &7
3 J55 59 R
o fio OBy 0.62
Levan Covvencnds ;

Unedher ihe terms of the major bomowing locilities, the Company & required lo comply any 2 of the following finoncial covenants lailing which penal
interes! a3 prescribed in the facility ogresment shall opply, The Financial Covenanls sholl be tested al The end of each Fscal Yeor based on the
cerfification of the Audiior,

[ ‘Gross DSCR

[ Inlerest Coveroge ralio

[®] FACR = [Hel Properfy. Flan! and Equipment/ Loan Culsianding)

Mote: The company has complisd with all Loan Cevenants lor the perod ending March 31, 2023 as per Focilty Agreement




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Discloswre of Interest in Olher Endilies pursvant lo Para B14 of Ind AS 112:

(A} The lollowing fable sumemories the fnancial informotion of Enfities o included in ils own separate fnancial sialements, adjusted for Tak valve

adustments of ocquisition and differences in accounting policies, if any.

furbens oltver s Il o oot ore In Mlon Inclon Euptes]|
Venuka Hi-Hon
Farm Gas
Fariculars Falymers Cylinden
Frivate Umited| o1 ote Limited | Private Limied
Pengd Ending 3= 5 1-
Lowniry el =1 Inschica
& iri i3 ;A
umen! 5 ? F:id EF42
Ron Curment Assats 1546 14 F230
LHTE Hr=s 175.54 A03F
on umen 159,67 [ é 7530
Hel asseh (1007) 1%.05 334
share of nel astels 726.09 954 1.4
1 444,50 4734
A xH] T
1584 1134 o
3 [iE:1] .
19.62 14,00 TF
44,57 37 .18
827 [EE
[0.11] - -
125, 7 0.45
_ﬁl‘i | [[5] -
125,13 8,25
x FXE 031
[0.01] 10.01) .
§2.56 ERE 6.7
Hmr_uw|
Paricubars

107,10 1 Y3
29593 1.82
29587 [l

14797 0,91 |
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" Adcilional Infermalion of Nal Assles and Shore In Profil or Loss Coniribuled Sy Vorious Enlifies o1 Recognised Under Schedule il of the Companies
At 2003

For the year ending Morch 31, 2023

et ol Sloied, o8 h ot in helion Indlon Bupess
Mot Assels Le Tolal Assets share In Oher Comprebensive | shore In Tolal Comprehensive
Less Tolal LiobEiles ahicoa In Brollk Or Loss incame Income
%ol
it o AsTel As T of Copteidated A5 %ol
Comolidated | Amound | Consolidabed Amount CQher A | ' lidated !
Nel Assels Fraft and Loss Camprehenive Mel Aszels
Farend Company
IR} Enengy Limited A% 25841 ERA4T 544 B0 oR5% $0.53) P 44% 55407
Subsidiary Company
R i 0.00% ons 004 {2.24) 0.00% : 004% 24|
Taint Ventuee Erlifos
Form Gas Privote Limited 5475 22403 991%, 6254 0545 {0:01) 9975 4254
¥anua Lovmen: ot 0a7% %.54 0.45% £13 1.18% [0.01) 0.45% 213
bk o 005% 1.42 0045 022 0.00% : 004% 22
Tatal- Joinl vorbure
Enfiies ZAT.18 6491 [ty 551
Geass Talal 100.00% 347283 100% 431,46 100% 104 | 100% £3082
|CF5 Adjuairnent and
Eirminations [28.56) - '
]-Cnmaiduhd Mol Assels 348427 3144 10,84 S3052

Adcilicnal Inforrmation of Nel Asstes and Share In Profil o Loss Conlribuled By Vioriows Enlities o1 Recogrsed Under Schadule il af the Companles

ASL2013
Far Ihe year ending March 11, 2002
{Unieu oimarwis shaled, o smenl. o i B bcian Bopaet)
Hel Asiols Le Tolal Asselh share In Other Comprehensive | share in Tobal Comprehensive
i Less Tolal Licbiites v o Prfl-Cy g come income
AR el
As Roal A3 % ol Cormolidated A5 % ol
Consolidafed |  Amount | Conseldeled Amount Other Amouni Conelidaled Amaunt
Het Assels Prodit and Loss Comprehensive Het Aviels
Income
Parent Company
IRM Energy Limited Ll 239507 BEL6FR 1.135.59 -S1837T% 0.1s BA.0% 1,135.74
Subsidiary Compary
SKI Clean Energy Privale
Limitesdl - 000K - O.00% - 0.00% =
Joinf Wenbure Enfilles
Farm Gos Private Uimied G555 163.47 11.58% 14797 T1LEOR MI 11.55% 147 54
b 0.37% 5.4 231%, [4.00) SHE5TE s 033% .16}
SR YD o D4 1.40 007% 05 0.00% z 007% 01
Tatal- Jainl venhss
et 17027 144,85 {18y 144,69
Grods Telal 100% 246544 10075 1.280.47 100% {003} 100% 1.280.43
S Adisiment and
Eiminalicons B ) B 5
Conscldaled Nel Assel 2.437.20 1,280.47 {003} 1,280.43

1% felated Fardy O

Dﬂﬂﬂmﬂmﬂnlhml:leﬂﬁﬂud'!htmu eniifles ond indhiduals s relaled parties of the Company for the punpose of reporing o per ind AS 24 -
Related Porty Transoctions, which one os unden;

B Join Vanilues antitisd
E_w—

- Enterprisad Sgniicantly Influenced by Dieclors or ther relatives or Key
ianogement Pamsonne

[¥] Senguine Monagaman! Services Private Limiled
MmEantWH
[x] Irrverion Bloreseanch Privole Limited
od Venlunes Private Limisd
M, FACRaPwor [
(] Dr. Rajiv L Modi |Direcior)
[} M. M‘i‘lnﬁ-ﬂhm}ae|m-uclur]
M. Bad Ma ]
%Mr Argoria (CFOY)
M, Honhel Anjoria |
[6) Ms. Shidha Join [




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
A HTS
Iol Drorsgchions wilh ralghbid porties (AL in By, milion);
Hofed of omounts on in Wion indian Bupse)]
Ar. Ha. Hature of Transoction Harm of Bhe Relabed Porty | For the year ending March 31, 2023 For the year ending March 31, 2022
Ciadia Pharmoceuiicals 199 1308
Lirnilac s i
! -5
Freale: Lril ﬁ% :
Venula Polymer: Privale
Lirnited it 0o
Engriech Fued Sohutions e
1977
: o1
- [%E]
TOE -
ili]} 05
0.03
Cod Veniea Privale Limiled 0. -
{w [k kIl
Pharmoaceuicals
C 749 3500
2 -
2 i 4 Py - " 434 -
Ti})
G
i)
- 372
5 |Subscripion of Shares finct - LA
il prarmium)
484
B E5H |
050 (o
[\ [}
(6357} 13501)
s [|Reimbunement of Expenses
[Poycbie/[Receivela]] [|@1 h '2-1:
0 o]
103wy -
B
5 |Drecior Sifing Fees ﬂ
& [Manogerdl Rermunergiion | 15,10 -IL-E
127 3,
Corpornte Sociol Responsioiy |1 M Sodguny Woler and
L Cevelopment Foundalion i A
Experos
&34 v
g |Donolon . 020
% |Loon Given z T |
& o]
10 |(Remunerglion 4
B 5
™ |_'|'
10.4%
11 |Cuishonding Poyobles TS 0]
031 o3
g,ﬂ 0.42
E5 49 A |
. L ¥] 5T |
0os
12 |Ouitionding Recehables
0,44 0.44
[l
I [:11] 2 _I
G Privale TEs AN i
A% per ogresman batwean he company and IRM Tt in Goods/Senvice. Bobilly lo poy icense less i put on sepension woed 158 July 2022,
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5. Mo Poriculon VO For the year ending March 31, 2023 Far the year ending March 11, 2022
Profit ofter lox oliiutable ho Bouily
a 29 B31.44 1,280,285
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37 Cenfingent Uabllifies & Capilal Commitment (lo the extent not provided fork:

L] w Mummum-nurhmww
[ &1, Mo, Farliculars As ol March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2023
\ Income Tax Liability bor ALY 16-17- Reclificafion Ged pending 008 DoS
resoklion
in respec] ol Corporale Guananiee given by the Company In
Iiovour of Baniks extending the credil laclities to Jaint Caniral ET5.40 S07.00
Erilifias
in respac! of Performance Bonk Guoroniee [PBG) ksued in
a'lmwnll"ﬂﬁﬂﬂ-wmm 1.581.20 1.581.20
Todal LI ¥ 568 25 |
8} 1 [Uries oTerwise $10%ed, 08 crounts aee in Mien Ingian Rupeer] |
:r_nn_ll Parficulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Eslimoied omownt o conkocts remaining fo be executed on i
ool secount & not provided for (et of advance] A il
Talal| ZINET L0805

12 The Comgpary hos taken Emits lor bssance of Pedormance Bonk Guorontes [PBG) In fovor of PHGRE which b secured as under

a Frsl Charge an movable and immovable asals [bath presant and hutune) relaling 1o the specific projects on por pomu bosis.
b Frst charge on cument asseds (incl, cosh fows, receivalbles, eic). bolh present and fulure, of the specific projects on par possu basis

Further, Codila Pharmoceulicol Lid hos ghven corporole guorantes for the Emills loken by the company lor submbsion of PBG of Re. 250 millon for the
Diw gnd Gir somanth city gos dislioution profact.

3% Corporale Seciol Responsibiliby:
As per Section 135 of fhe Componies Ach, 2013, o Corporoie Socicl Responalbility (C5R) commithes has been lormed by the Company. The CSR activifies of
e Campary ore ganarally Been comied out by making poymaent coniibulion io eligible Trusts. The Tnsts comy out the CIR oclivilies as specified in
Schadule Vil o 1he Companias Acl, 2013 on bahall of the Company.

{Uniess oiharsise Boted. of omounts o bn MG Incisn Rupes |

5. New Parficuiars Feir il o ;;“‘”‘"ﬂ‘“' For the year ending March 31, 2022
] Arnownt requred 1o be spen! durng The yecrperod T 500 |
v Amound of opaning urapent CSR experses spend during the -
yeoriperiod
Arnoun! approved by 1he Boand 1o Be spent duing the b a0
Clyeoriperiod
dj Arncund 3 1 ] I 1610 403
&Mﬂﬂﬂw = -
On purposes olhar thon [ cbove 14.10 &03
| Delails telabed Io spent/vnipent obligalians
i Caonfriution ta Pulic and Chortable Trust 1410 03
i Exces Amoun] comy lorword | L0 ]

40 Segmenl Infcamalion
o Descriplion of segmenis and princioal ocliviias
The Company hat o single operaling segment thal i “Sale of Motuiel Gos®. Accondingly, the segmant revenue, segrent resulls, segment caaeds &
segment Babiilies ore rellecied in tha Reslated Corsoldated Ffinancial Sialemaents ihemaetves os of & lor the pericd finonciol yeor ended March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022,

b Enfity wide dhclosures
i lndprmoiion obout products ang senvices The Compony 5 In @ single ine of business of “Sole of Matural Gas®.

Iwmlwmll‘ﬂ company operalies presanily in e business of city gos distibution in ndia, Accoraingly. rervanang irom cusiomens
samed and non-curen! oital anms acaled, in indio.

& Information about major customers: In the cument year, revanue from none of fhe exemal cutlomes indhidually accounted for mone then ten
pmmnlnﬂh: revenue.

41 Reglshrafion of c listaction with Regishar of Companles (ROC)
MCnmpuva;ragHmedduguwﬂhROCﬂhh sloiutery fime pedod. Thene hos been no sofiilociion of charge Bed with ROC,

42 Dalails of Benami Froporty held
The company does nal hold amy banars proparty under the Benami Tronsoctions (Prohibition] Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) ond rvies mode thereunder, hence no
procesding: iniliated or panding ogainy Iha campany under the 125d Act and Rules.

43 Leon ond edvances grenbed o spoeciBed person
Except s sioted in the notes to ocoounts ond finonciol sictemaent, therg ane no ofher koans or odvances granted o speciffed persons naomely promoters,
dirgcion, KNP and related ponlies

44 Lend, Building and Plant & Mochinery on leese for meee Fhan 12 months
The Company has loken Lond, Building and Plond & Mochinery on Leoss for the perod of mane than 12 Months, The Compony has baken other Buildings also
on laote for ihe period of 12 montihs oF laas lor which the compony opples the "Shori-lerm leoses™ recognifion exempiions. Declosures as per ind AS 114~
Leases are o lollows:

a  Chonges in the coming voive ol foht of use cuels
[unieas oifherwise sbated. o omounts o in MiSon Indion Rupeed)
Parficulars o e pece m' R March 1. Fef the year ending March 31, 2022

ol ihe begnining of The yeor =3 Iﬁﬁ :._1,;?
]

:r'.im‘
13747 |




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

b Movaman! of Lecis Uobilfles

%nmm O grmonnts one in Wsn Incion Bupaeas) |
Far the yeor ending March 31,

Faficulars Far the yeor ending March 31, 2022
T g e : ey LTx)
. &3 ELTT ]
U= ions 0 "
[==TH during The year 217 o7 |
at T
Bolance [ 1 nraor

e Conkoctual malyurdiles of lpose fobiites

wummm.mmnhmm!wi

Parficulars '““"““g"" March 31, Far the yeor ending Mareh 31, 2022
Lss Than are [-]
PO B - —si T E—
Morg Thon e yecn TI500 LN
[Totat 15935 11707

d  Amount recognited in Statement of Prof! ond Loss oceounl durdng the yveor
oted, o ormonunts ene In MEon incian

Farficulars '"mmm"ﬂ . Far Ibe year ending March 31, 2027

[Amoribaton w%puu T84
inierest on Lecie [EAF
B0 § terrm S HE
ﬁ — L1 T

e Amcunt recognized in stabement of Cosh Flow
finiess ofharaiie riohed S0 ormaunts ave in Mion indion Bupee)

e rumyu;;nghchll. Foe the year ending Mareh 31, 2023

Toial Crosh Niow Tor lnaie 1] 1
(Tobal FIE]] i

EEEE!

3

45 Uillsotion ol bemawed fends, share premium ard abher hunds
The Company has nal receivwed any fund from eny persen or enfity with the undantanding thal the Company would directly or indrectly lend orinvest in
eiher persen or enify identified in oy monne whalioever by or on behall of Ihe funding porty [ulfimate beneficiany) e provided cny guaranies o security
or i ke on bahall of the ulimale benalicion.

The Group have not odvanced or loaned o invested funds: 10 any ofher parsan(s] or enhbyfes), inchrding lomsign endliles (niermediades) with the
wnolanionding that the intermadion shall:
 Sreclly or incirectly lend or invest in ofher penons or enfifies identified in any monner whatsoaver by o on baholf of the company [Uimate
Banaficionas) or

B provide ony guaraniee, security or the lke 1o of on behall of the Ulimsile Berelicaries
45 Complianse wilh number of lavers of comparies
The comgany has complied with the number of keyers prescribed ynder clouse [B7) ol section 2 of fhe Act read with Componies (Resiviclion on mamber of
Loyen) Bules, 2017

AT Details of Cryplo Cunency o Widual Cumency
The compary has not iroded o irvested in Cryplo cumency o Vidual Curancy during the Snoncial yeor,

48 Undisclosed Income
There i no fronsoction, which has nol been reconded In books al accounts, thot hos besa wumendered o disciceed ot income durdng the yeor in lax
austtments under the income Tax Act, 1941,

4% Relafionship with struck off companies
The Company do not hove ony frefocfions with companses siruck off under secfion 248 of the Compardes Act. 2013 or secion 540 of Componies Acl, 1954

S0 Willl Defauller
The company & not declared os witful delaulter by any bank or linancial institufion or ciher lender.
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A3 af 31 March 2022 lal instruments ng amount] Fair waluw higrarchy [lal value)
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53 Financisl Ratios
Far th
ir. Ne Ratia Humeralor Denominator .-I::ng.h:::h For the year sading March 21,
31,2023 e
L Cument Uabies %‘ T&]
Toiod Eguity I i
r e T
Dabi Services inlerest+Leosn
Paryrrente Principal Repaymaent 254 543
BT
and which resulled In o lewer Groms Margin
21 i
i &%

| &)

| =7,

Reason lor change mare than 25%: The profits ore decrected due fo higher commadily prices and which resulted In o lower Gross Margin

Capital Employed [Tokal Anety-

et Eamings bafore inferest ond
um o Copllal employed ey Curranl Liokilies| 5 0.5
10 [%chonge rem previous year =] -

Rezion lof change more than 25%: The eomings are decreased due io higher commedity prices and which resul

fed in o lower Gross Margin

2.45%]

Chorlered Accountants
Firrm Registralion No: 106825 il =
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kel

Karan Egushal|
v CEO

¥
ki
Compony tecretory




	Board's Report 2022-23
	Standalone new
	Consolidated financials - New

